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Key figures
Financial performance indicators

H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Assets under Management (AUM)! EUR57.9bn EUR 56.2b 3.0%
EBITDA EUR 28.4r EUR 54.5r -48.0¥
EBITDA margin 18.3% 32.2% -13.9 PF
' AUM asat 31 December 202: EURS9.1bn (change 30 June 28%s. 31 December 202 -2.1%)
PP= percentage points
Revenues and earnings
EUR k H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Revenues 130,797 158,476 -17.5%
Total operating performance 135,975 166,241 -18.2%
EBITDA 28,365 54,534 -48.0¥
EBIT 14,139 29,996 -52.9%
EBT 10,941 26,398 -58.6%
Consolidated net profit 5,735 15,047 -61.9Y
Structure of assets and capital
EUR k 30.06.2023 31.12.2022 Change
Noncurrent assets 1,246,672 1,245,98€ 0.1%
Current assets 742,472 799,888 -7.2%
Equity (excl. nogontrolling interests) 1,221,692 1,258,992 -3.0%
Equity ratio (exchoncontrolling interests) 61.4¥ 61.5% 0.1 PF
Net equity ratio 71.4y 70.1% 1.3 PF
Noncurrent liabilities 362,028 460,221 -21.3%
Current liabilities 356,998 260,315 37.1¥
Total assets 1,989,144 2,045,874 -2.8Y%
PP= percentage points
PATRIZIA share
ISIN DEOOOPAT1AG3
SIN (Security Identification Number) PAT1AG
Code PAT

Issued shares as at 30.06.2023
Outstanding shares as at 30.06.20231
Treasury shares as at 30.06.2023
H12023 high?

H1 2023 low?

Closing price as at 30.06.20232

Share price performance H1 20232
Market capitalisation as at 30.06.2023
Average trading volume per day H1 20233

Indices

! Reduced number of shares compared to the issued shares due to share buybacks
2 Closing price on Xetmading
* All German stock exchanges

92,351,476 shares
85,720,791 shares
6,548,668 shares
EUR 12.38

EUR 8.16

EUR 10.90

5.2%

EUR 1.0bn
71,480 shares

SDAX, MSGNorld Small Cap Index and others (CDAX, Classic #
Share, DAX International Mid 100, DAXsector Financial Service:
DAXsubsector Real Estate, Solactive DIMAX Deutschland, Prim
Share, S&P GIVI Global Index, S&P Global BMI, S&P Intrinsic V
WeightedGlobal Index, S&P Low Beta Global Index)
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Interim group management
report

1 Economic report

1.1 Business performance

P AT R | apdratir@ $usinesduring the first half of the year 2023 was impacted by an environment of market uncertainty,
high inflation and rising financing cosRecurring management fees continued to grow, but were unable to compensate for
declining transaction fees due to subdued transaction market activity as well as declining performance fees compared to last
year. Neverthelessecurring management feestrondy continual to supportfinancial results making PATRIZIA a more
diversified investment manager with an increasingly recurring earnings profile in line with its strategy.

As a result of the overall decline total servicefee income and the absence pbsitive oneoff effects compared to the
same period in the previous ye&BITDA in the first half of 2023 recorded a dectind8.0%0 EUR 28.# in the 2023

reporting period after EUR 54rfin the previous year.

Nevertheless, with a solid net equity ratio of 71.4% and available liquidity of EUR 305.2m, PATRIZIA is well posk®ned to ta
advantage of market opportunities as they arise, eversibduedmarket environment.

Due to he investment restraint of the Company's global clients and currently very low transaction volumes in the market for
real estate and infrastructure, the Company's management no longer expects a significant recovery in business activities in
the second halbf 2023. For this reason, PATRIZIA is adjusting its forecast for assets under management to a range of EUR
57.0-62.0bn (from previously EUR 60-@5.0bn) for the 2023 fiscal year. EBITDA is expected to be in a range of EUR 50.0
70.0m (from previouslfEUR 50.G 90.0m). The EBITDA margin is expected to be in a rangé. of 21.2% (fronpreviously

15.6- 24.3%).

Assets under management

As at 30 Jun€023, PATRIZIAeld Asets underManagementfAUM)of EUR57.9bn, down from EUR59.1bn as at 31
December2022, corresponding to a moderate decreaseEdfR1.2bnor -2.1% mainly due to valuation effect$egeneral
resilienceof AUMis attributable to itshroad geographical and sectorialv@rsification.At the reporting date, the share of
AUM outsideof Germany amounted t47.5% ofEUR27.5bn of AUM(31 December 2022: 47.9% or EUR 28.3bn) whie t
infrastructure sectoaccounted forl5.4% of PATRIZIA&IM(compared to 14.9% as at 31 Dedsen 2022).

Assets under Management (EUR bn)

31.12.2022
2.1%

30.06.2023
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Assets under Management as at 30 June 2023 | Sectoral distribution

.g b = Office
= Residential
= Retalil
Logistics, Industrial & Light Industrial
= Infrastructure

" Hotel

~ = Health Care
= Other

Assets under Management as at 30 June 2023 | Geographical distribution

@ » Germany

%% + UK & Ireland

% = France & Belgium
Nordics

. * Asia-Pacific

7% = Netherlands

-
%

* Spain
* North America
* Other
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EBITDAand EBITDA margin
Composition of EBITDA (EUR m)

s -19.9% ¢ -60.8% z +10.2%
z +3.6% ¢ 64.1% 27.1 2.9
I
4.1
-126.3
& -48.0%
EBITDA Management fees Transaction fees Performance feedNet sales revenues Net operating EBITDA
H1 2022 and co-investment  expenses H1 2023
income

Total service fee income
EUR 151.8m6.1%

A
v change yo-y

During the reporting period 2028&tal service fee incomedecreased by6.1% to EUR 151.8m (H1 2022: EUR 161.6m). In

Il ine with the Groupds strategy,-ommamage meants fsappoirncr ¢ hiewed o
to furtherimprowe the quality of fee income. However, this improvementcoot fully compensate for the strong decline in

transaction fees andto a lesser extentin performance fees. The individual componentsotdl servicefee income are

explained below:

Management fees:All services provided by PATRIZIA are remunerated in form of fees. Management fees include
remuneration for real asset services such as asset, fund and portfolio management and are highly relamagegment

fees of EUR 120.6m were received in the fiaf-year 2023 (H1 2022: EUR 116.4mByachieving anoderate growthate

of 3.6% PATRIZIAas reacted an additional achievement on its pdtiwards becoming a more diversified investment
manager with an increasingly recurring earnings profile.

Transadion fees: PATRIZIA receives transaction fees for the execution of acquisitions and disposal transactions. These fees
amounted to EUR 4.1m in the first hgdfar 2023 (H1 2022: EUR 11.4M64.1%). Acquisitions accounted for EUR 2.6m (H1
2022: EUR 9.1m:71.0%) and disposals for EUR 1.5m (H1 2022: EUR 238m8%0). In addition to the challenging market
environment, the strong decrease is also due to the fact that the majority of transactions completed in the fpesrhalf

2023 were for funds with (ath) management fees.

Performance feesPATRIZIA receives performance fees if defined target investment yields are met or exceeded. In the first
halfyear 2023, performance fees of EUR 27.1m were achieved (H1 2022: EUR 33.8m). In the consolidated income
statement, these fees are reported partly as revenues (EUR 7.2m; H1 2022: EUR 13.4m) and partly as income from
participations (EUR 19.9m; H1 2022: EUR 20.4m). The performance fees mainly result frorntiestogent Dawonia,

which are incurred annually. Thieadg declinein performance fees is also due the current market environment as well as a
lower number of disposals for clients.
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In the 2023 reporting period, PATRIZIA generated EUR 2r8eh $ales revenues and cinvestment income compared to

EUR 7m in the same period of the previous ye&é0(8%). Net sales revenues contribuEEdR 1.8m (H1 2022: EUR 5.6m)

to this result. The strong decrease is mainly due to the profitable sale of one of the last remaining balance shees jmopertie
the UK (Trodb House)in the amount of EUR 2.0in the previous yearCoinvestment income amounted to EUR 1.1m
(H12022: EUR 1.9m). Thereof, result from participatigron a constant level at EUR 2.1m (H1 2022: EUR 2.1m). Negative
earnings from companies accountéat using the equity method of EUROm (H1 2022: EURD.2m) hal an offsetting
effect.

Despite tangible cost containment in the operating expensesoperating expensesncreased by 10.2% from EUR 114.6m

in the previous year to EUR 126.3m in the reporting period 202&ddition to the moderate increase in personnel expenses

due to general inflatiorelated salary adjustmen@nd longterm incentive provisiongs well & consolidation effects from

two M&A transactions, this was mainly due to the profitable deconsolidation of a project development in Hamburg (Silver
Swan) in the previous year, which was held temporarily on the balance sheet and had a relieviofEffed7.8mon net
operating expenseis 2022

Due to the aforementioned factoSBITDAotaled EUR 28.4m in the H1 2023 reporting period after EUR 54.5m in the same
period of the previous year.

EBITDA margin

in % H1 2023 H1 2022 Change

EBITDA margin 18.3% 32.2% -13.9 PF

PP = percentage points

EBITDA margircompares EBITDA with the sum of total service fee income and net sales revenuesirarebstotent
income. The EBITDA margin decreased-gegear by 13.9 percentage points to 18.3% (H1 2022: 32.2%) due to tangible
decrease in total service fee income atdhe same timesignificantincreasein net operating expensedue to the absence

of positive oneoff effects
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The individual components of EBITDA and their respective line items, in particular witinsthlielated income statement,
are explained below.

Detailed reconciliation to EBITDA

EUR k H1 2023 Table in the current repor
Management fees (excluding result from participations) 116,011 Reconciliation of total service fee inco
Shareholder contribution for management services
(in result from participations) 4,558 Reconciliation of total service fee inco
Management fees 120,568
Transaction fees 4,103 Reconciliation of total service fee inco
Performance fees (excluding result from participations) 7,172 Reconciliation of total service fee inco
Performance fees (in result from participations) 19,908 Reconciliation of total service fémcome
Performance fees 27,081
Total service fee income 151,753 Reconciliation of total service fee inco
Revenues from the sale of principal investments 0 Revenue
Changes in inventories 0 Consolidated income stateme
Cost ofmaterials -118 Consolidated income stateme
Rental revenues 1,890 Revenue
Revenues from ancillary costs 43 Revenue
Net sales revenues 1,815
Earnings from companies accounted for using the equity method -950 Consolidated income stateme
Consolidated income statement & Reconcilia
Remaining result from participations 2,068 of total service fee inconr
Colnvestment result 1,119
Net sales revenues and cvestment income 2,933
Staff costs -85,789 Consolidated incomstatement
Other operating expenses -38,433 Consolidated income stateme
Cost of purchased services -8,541 Consolidated income stateme
Other operating income 4,101 Consolidated income stateme
Other revenues 1,578 Revenue
Income from theleconsolidation of subsidiaries 1,077 Consolidated income stateme
Cost from the deconsolidation of subsidiaries -3 Consolidated income stateme
Impairment result for trade receivables and contract assets -53 Consolidated income stateme
Reorganisation expenses -311 Consolidated income stateme
Reorganisation Income 54 Consolidated income stateme
Net operating expenses -126,321
EBITDA 28,365
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Further KPIs

Transaction volume based on signed transactions (EUR bn)

H1 2022 2.7
62.2%
H1 2023 1.0
B Acquisitions ® Disposals
Transaction volume based on closed transactions (EUR bn)
H1 2022 3.6
-64.4%
H1 2023 1.3

B Acquisitions ¥ Disposals

The transaction market continues to be subject to high uncertaiatiesit the economic environmerttigh inflation rates

and rising interest rates, resulting in negative impacts on transaction activity overall. Nevertheless, PATRIZIA veignable to
and close smallertransactions for national and international clients thanks to its strong platform and diversified product
offering.

Equity raised (EUR m)

H1 2022

-64.6%
H1 2023

New equity raised from institutional and segmifessional investors for various German and international resdt as
investments in the firssix months of 2023 was influenced by the lower overall transaction activity in the market. &ased
its global platform and broadly diversified product offering, PATRIZIA nevertheless expects to orseeegssfully exploit
market opportunities for its institutional, semrofessional and private investors in the form of attractee estate and
infrastructure fund products. PATRIZIA is ready to take opportunities for its clients once they arise, bdek&38.8pn
client firepaver in the funds managed.
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1.2 Business Model

PATRIZIA is a leading European independent real asset investment rhesithgg®3 employees (FTE at 3 June 2023n

28 locations worldwideTheCompang s c or e b u s i nirvessnent rmanageenenbfferiagsas@rprehensive
product portfolioof private and listed equitfunds private debfundsand fund of fund products in line with individual return
expectations, diversification objectives and risk stytesore than 500 instutional and 7,000 senprofessionabr private
investors

PATRI Z1 A6s strategic focus on further expanding aned divers
acquisition of infrastructure investment manager Whitehelm Capitaéptember 202Xclosing 1 February 2022) arlde

diversified multmanagerADVANTAGEvestment Brtnersin July 2022closing 1 December 2022Roth acquisitions lever

important synergies and point the way towab@goning a leading partner for global real assets.

PATRIZIA ®ffering spans from real assets funds, bespoke account solutions, Global Partner solutions, multi strategy
solutions to landmark single asset & portfolio deal opportunities ta et preferences and requirements extensively

and specificallyThe Companprovides a wide range of services, from asset and portfolio management to the execution of
acquisitions and disposal transactions for almost all real estate and infrastriggtaters to alternative investments and

project developmentst nvest ors swreueaidveodnmtodoahb that covers all servic
asset investments. Specific parts from this assortment can be chosen as well.

P AT R fidnt gtratsgies are built ospecialist expertise in variousvestmentstrategies andisk classesof real estate
and infrastructureln recent years as well as through the acquisition\fitehelm Capitahnd ADVANTAGE Investment
Partners the Companyhas enriched its historically private markdiased equity product offering bigted equity, private
debt and additional fund of fund strategies to offerestors comprehensive diversification opportesit

The product shelf covessbroad range of real estate and infrastructure assets. The scopalddstate assetlasses ranges
from residential, office, retail and logistics properties to hateldcare homesThe product offering infistructurecovers
nearly all infrastructie sectors, such asnergy including renewableglistribution networks foelectricity,communications,
gas and heatwater and waste managemeas well asunderground energy storage facilitiss, called caverngransportor
socialinfrastructure, likeschools and kindergardens

PATRIZIA also offers its clients broad access to -maltiager products, scalled funds of fundgp invest in real estate
global infrastructure and private equftynds in Europe, Asia and the Americas.

Theassetsheld by he funds typically have a planned initial holding period of between five and ten years, with a propensity
for ten years.

! Source: IREI Global Investment Managers, published in September 2022 (latest availdmkier). based oAssets undeiManagement.

10
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PATRIZIA segional platforms cover 28 locationgloballyto service clients and manage real assets locally
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@ PATRIZIA offices globally Markets with PATRIZIA operations & clients

® Operating partner offices

P AT R | chentdifckide institutional and seimiofessional investors such as insurance firms, pension fund institutions and
sovereign funds from Germany, Europe, tts and Asia, higietworth individuals (HNWI) and private investors.

PATRIZIAeeks for arust-basedandreliable partnershipvith business partnerand successful transactiorfer investors,
and deemssustainable, prudenand successful business operatiomsbe the basis for thidts brand and associated trust
are consideredessentialfor attracting new clients and extending existing business relationships. This is wByprtigany
places great value on fostering the PAIIR brand and earning the trust of investors with every investment.

Overall,clients entrusted PATRIZIA with new equitye@fR0.2bn inthe first halfyear2023 to be invested in various real
asset strategiesPATRIZIAurrently has outstanding equity moitments amounting t&UR 3.8h, whichare available to
make opportunistic asset acquisitions on behalf®tlients if and when opportunities arise.

P AT R I régioralplatfornms are well established throughout Europe and growing globagrds theAsianPacific region
with a regional hub established in Singapore in 2022 but @e@rds the North American region where tBempany
currently maintains two offices. In total, regional platforms c@&tocationsof PATRIZIA offices to service clients and
manage real assets localg at 30 June 2023.

PATRIZIA is represented afl markets by teamsor partnerswith longstanding and above all, local expertise. The
Compangs regionally and n adivedrachdcdess toecsrierd marketsdeveldpmemte and tracks
virtually all transactions relevant to itlients It enables PATRIZIAittentify and pursue attractiiavestment opportunities

in nearly all infrastructure and real estate asset classes as well as risk profiles.

PATRIZIAas various entities that are designed to manage investment assets, including German asset management
companies and a regulated platio (AIFM) in each of Luxembourg, France, Denmark, the United Kingdom and Australia.

They make global investments in various real estate and infrastructure sectors, on behalf of their clients via the funds
launched. The funds act as holding agents.

This povides the preequisites to offer investments within the legal and regulatory framework preferred by the respective
clients according to their local regulations. Relationshifib clients have been and continue to be expanded worldwide.
Local contacts hee been established in Australia, Singapore, Hong Kong, Japan, Southtirid&and CanadaThe
existing client basén Germany andhe rest of Europeis equallybeing expanded further. The aim is to build a ‘@nm,

stable relationship with internamal clients similarly to the relationship PATRIZIA already enjoys with its existing
predominantly German investors.

11
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PATRIZIA belies¢here are four fundamental secular trends which support allocations to real estiefrastructureén the
medium and long term: demographics, urbanisation, digitalisation and decarbonisation.

Demographic trends, such as evolving age pyramids andrhoamtal agglomeration, affect how peop®mnsume real
estate, driving demand for emerging alternative subsectors such as student houssepanrdiving.

In parallel, urbanisation trendse expected tainderpin where the demand will rise and fathim urban areas. Tedology
and digitalisation trends, such as the rise efoenmerce and hybrid/remote work, bring about the need for last mile
logistics, data centres and teemabled buildings.

Finally, decarbonisation is closely linked to ESG trends and inmpastment. In light of the threat posed by climate change,
PATRIZIA seeks to make its clients' assets fytwoef by preserving and increasing asset values.

The primay source ofevenuedor the Companyare service fees in form of management, transaction and performance fees.
However, revengefrom coinvestments and occasional rentavenuesfrom assets temporarily held on the balance sheet
also contribute tdotal revenuesalbeit to a small level.

PATRIZIA structuiseplaces and managse fund vehiclesfor clients The majority of these funds are launched without any
equity investment on the part of PATRIZIRe Compangenerates stable and recurring incomehe form of management
fees for managing assets and project developmenite size ossets under management (AUtlgrefore impacts the level
of recurring fee income. AUltcounted for EUR7.9bnas of30 June 202331 Decembe2022: EUR59.1n). Additinal
revenue streams stem from thacquisition and disposadf assets, so called transaction feeBATRIZIA also receives
performance fees if defined individual yield targgtfundsor assetsare exceeded.

PATRIZIAelectivelyinvests Group equity in paership with its institutional clientsnp the form ofco-investments.In

addition to committing to the client and the transaction, PATRIZIA generates fees and additional investment income and thus
all ows PATRI ZI Adtxipat indirectyim thé gedornsance athe underlying real assegortfolio. In total,
PATRIZIA has invested EQURon of its own equity imoderately sized andell diversified canvestments. Current market

values of the own equity invested as-inwestments areusuallysignificantly above the historic investment costs. As at

30 June 2023 coinvestments relate to assets under management in the amount of EBURN (31 December2022:
EUR9.9bn). Thereof, the largest emvestment is Dawonia GmbH wiUR5.4bn in assets under managemeriurther

details on ceinvestments can be found in the capital allocationtiapter 1.3

As an investment manager for institutional, semifessional and private investors, PATREMs to avoid conflicts of
interest with fs own balance sheetnvestments so called principal investment®rincipal investments were strategically
reduced in recent year#\s at 30 June 2023 remaininBrincipal investments amountéd EUR 1.9m (unchanged 31
December 2022).

Independent from principal investments, certain assets are in some cases temporarily consolidatecCamfganyas
interim financing for closednd funds or as eadghase investments with the purpose of subsequent contribution to funds.

12
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The segments Management Servicaed Investments categorisghether PATRIZIA acts as a service provider avan
balance sheeinvestor.In the Management Services segmeRATRIZIA generates fee income for thent services it
performs In the Investment esgment PATRIZIA generates income fra@mncipal investmentsco-investments and
occasionally rentalevenues

The Management Services segment covers a broad range of real assets services such as the acquisition amalisale of
estate and infrastructureassets or portfolios (Acquisition und Disposals), vaddented property management (asset
management), strategic consulting on investment strategy, portfolio planning and allocation (portfolio management) and the
execution of complex, nestandard inveshents (alternative investments).

Through the Gr oup 0 s enttiesspecalsfiindstare alsorset gpeamde managed according to individual
client requests. The service fee incomenerated from both emvestments and thirparty businesss reported in the
Management Services segment. This also inclnt@sagement and performance fees realised in income from participations
due toservices rendered as a shareholder contribution for the asset management ofithestment Dawonia GmbH.

Thelnvestments segment bundl@emainingprincipal investmentas well as moderately sized and well diversified strategic

co-investments and occasional rentavenues

As at 30 June 202RATRIZA Group with its parent company PATRIZIA SE consBfssabsidiaries, five aquity entities
and 25 branches. Currently, the legal entities and branches are mainly lanadope, whereby the global presence is
consistently extended aspafo PATRI Z1 A6s growth strategy.

13
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1.3 Economic situation

In the first halyear 2023, PATRIZIA generated an EBITDA of EUR 28.4m.

The EBITDA is the Group's key performance indicterdetailed-econciliationand development of thEBITDAs shown in
the table below:

Reconciliation of EBITDA

EUR k H1 2023 H1 2022 Changs
Total operating performance 135,975 166,241 -18.2%
Cost of materials -118 -494 -76.1y
Cost of purchased services -8,541 9,356 -8.7Y%
Staff costs -85,789 -82,499 4.0%
Other operating expenses -38,433 -41,867 -8.2Y%
Impairment result for trade receivables and contract assets -53 -73 -26.7%
Result from participations 26,534 27,200 -2.4Y%
Earnings from companiegcounted for using the equity

method 950 -189 402.1y
Cost from the deconsolidation of subsidiaries -3 2,122 -99.9¥
EBITDAR 28,622 56,840 -49.6%
Reorganisation result -257 -2,307 -88.9%
EBITDA 28,365 54,534 -48.0%

The individuatomponents of the EBITDA are explained in more detail below according to their order in the consolidated
income statement.

14
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In the first haHlyear 2023 revenuesdecreased from EUR 158.5m to EUR 130.81%.5%) compared to the same period of
the previous year.

Revenues

EUR k H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Revenues from management services 127,287 136,527 -6.8Y%
Proceeds from the sale of principal investments 0 18,079 -100.0¥
Rental revenues 1,890 3,840 -50.8%
Revenues frorancillary costs 43 113 -62.0%
Other 1,578 81 <-1,000.09
Revenues 130,797 158,476 -17.5%

Revenues from management servicesll by-6.8% from EUR 136.5m to EUR 127.3m in the reporting period compared to
the previous year. However, revenues alone prdyide alimited information values certain profit and loss itemare not
included in revenues, such as the result from ipgrations,which must also be taken into account in order to fully assess
the Groupds performance.

Including the income from the Dawonia GmbHne@stment, which is reported in result from participations, total service fee
income amounted to EUR 151.8which corresponds to a reduction -6£1% compared to the previous year's figure of EUR
161.6m. Driven by growth in assets under management, management fees including result from participations increased by
3.6% yeaonyear to EUR 120.6m (H1 2022: EURG¥tn). Transaction fees decreased-6%.1% to EUR 4.1m (H1 2022:

EUR 11.4m) due to theurrent market environment. Furthermore, also due to tuerent market environment as well as

lower number of disposals for clients, performance feekidingthe resilt of coinvestment Dawonia GmbH decreased to

EUR 27.1m (H1 2022: EUR 331.9%).

If the result from participations is shown separately witbial servicefee income, the following picture emerges:

Reconciliation of total service fee income

EUR k H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Management fees (excluding result from participations) 116,011 111,714 3.8%
Performance fees (excluding result from participations) 7,172 13,397 -46.5Y
Transaction fees 4,103 11,416 -64.1Y
Revenues frommanagement services 127,287 136,527 -6.8%
Performance fees (in result from participations) 19,908 20,408 -2.4%
Shareholder contribution for management services

(in result from participations) 4,558 4,706 -3.2%
Total service fee income 151,753 161,641 -6.1%

Proceeds from the sale of principal investmentamounted to EUR Om after EUR 18.1m compared to the previous year’s
period. In the first haljear 2022, this position mainly included the sale of the prinicpal investment Trocoll House in the UK in
the amount of EUR 17.9m, which was partially offset bycttange in inventories of EUR 15.9m, resulting in a net positive
effect in the consolidated income statement of EUR 2.0m. The reduction in principal investments is in line with the stronger
strategic focus on investment management services.

In the reporing period, PATRIZIA generatemtal revenuesof EUR 1.9m, compared with EUR 3.8m in H1 2022, in
particular for properties only temporarily held on the balance sheet.

Revenues from ancillary costselate to rental ancillary costs and amounted to EWRI® the period under review (H1
2022: EUR 0.1m).

Other essentially comprises transaction costs that are charged on to the corresponding investmetasvatmis item
increased from EUR.1m in the same period of the previous year to EUR 1.Gheifirsthalfyear2023.
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Total operating performancer ef | ect s PATRI Z1 A6s operating performance mol
relevant parameters areonsideredn total operating performancén the first halyear 2023, total operating performance
decreased byl8.2% to EUR 136.0m, compared&dR 144.0m in the same period of the previous year.

Reconciliation of total operating performance

EUR k H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Revenues 130,797 158,476 -17.5%
Changes in inventories 0 -15,950 -100.0¥
Other operating income 4,101 5,627 -27.1Y
Income from the deconsolidation of subsidiaries 1,077 18,087 -94.0%
Total operating performance 135,975 166,241 -18.2%

Changes in inventorie®f EUR Om were reported in the first hgdir 2023 (H1 2022: EUR6.0m) The reduction isnainly
due to the sale of the principal investment Trocoll House in the UK in the previous reporting period.

Other operating incomeamounted to EUR 4.1m in thesfi halfyear 2023 (H1 2022: EUR 5.6m) and mainly includes income
from expired obligations of EUR 1.7m (H1 2022: EUR 4.5m) as well as the profitable sale of the control.IT
Unternehmensberatung GmbH, which was accounted for using the equity method, ot BYR112022: EUR Om).

Income from the deconsolidation of subsidiariesainly results from the deconsolidation of Silver Swan C 2018 S.4.r.l. in
the financial year 2022. The background of the deconsolidation was the profitable disposal of a projeginmiztein
Hamburg, which was temporarily held on the company's own balance sheet.

Thecost of materialsincludes construction and maintenance work for principal investments, which are usually capitalised
and must be seen in connection withanges in inventories. Compared to the same period of the previous year, the cost of
materials decreased by 76.1% yearyear from EUR 0.5m to EUR 0.1m.

Thecost of purchased servicesncludes in particular the purchase of fund management servicexfemallabel funds for

which PATRIZIA Immobilien Kapitalverwaltungsgesellschaft mbH acts as a service KVG. In order to ensure an improved
presentation of the earnings situation, tranan costs that are incurred to generate sales revenue and can generally be
charged on have also been reported in this itemthe first haHyear 2023, the cost of purchased services amounted to EUR

8.5m (H1 2022: EUR 9.4m).
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As at 30 Jun2023 PATRIZIA had 993 employees based otirhélequivalents (FTE) (3une 2022: 1,00@mployee}

Staff costs

EUR k H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Fixed salaries 50,356 49,030 2.7%
Variable salaries 22,675 21,339 6.3%
Social securitgontributions 10,505 12,114 -13.3%
Effect of longerm variable remuneration? 150 -1,805 -108.3%
Other 2,103 1,821 15.5%
Total 85,789 82,499 4.0%
! Changesinvalueofloiger m vari able remuneration pmlicce to change in the companyds share

Overall staff costs increased in the first hajfear 2023, in particular due to general inflatiehated salary adjustmentsnd
longterm incentive provisiong=urthermore, there were consolidation effects due to the acquisition of Whitehelnal Capit
(initial consolidation as from 1 February 2022; only includedifermonths in the prioyear period) and of ADVANTAGE
Investment Partners (initial consolidation as from 1 December 2022; not included in thgeprigeriod).

As a result of the pdsve PATRIZIA share price performance in the firstykalf 2023, the valuation of losigrm variable
remuneration had a negative effect on staff costs of EUR 0.2m in the reporting period (H1 2022: incoi8rElUR

The Other item mainly includes roash benefits.
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At a level of EUR 38.4rather operating expensesn the first halyear 2023were-8.2% lower than in the same period of
the previous yeaBelow is a detailed breakdown:

Other operating expenses

EUR k H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Tax, legal, other advisory and financial statement fees 9,301 11,101 -16.2%
IT and communication costs and cost of office supplies 8,721 9,137 -4.5Y%
Rent, ancillary costs and cleaning costs 1,945 1,835 6.0%
Other taxes 400 2,564 -84.4y
Vehicle and travel expenses 3,959 3,116 27.1y
Advertising costs 1,782 1,966 -9.4Y%
Recruitment and training costs and cost of temporary work 3,748 2,819 33.0¥
Contributions, fees and insurance costs 2,759 2,501 10.3¥
Commission and other sales costs 560 951 -41.1y
Costs of management services 1,284 1,137 13.0%
Indemnity/reimbursement 59 315 -81.4%
Donations 797 1,190 -33.0¥
Other 3,118 3,236 -3.7%
Total 38,433 41,867 -8.2%

Tax, legal, othemdvisory and financial statement fees of EUR 9.3m (H1 2022: EUR11.1m) include, among others:

- Costs related to personnetlated legal advice in the amount of EUR 1.0m (H1 2022: EUR 0.6m)

- Audit fees of EUR 0.8m (H1 2022: 0.6m)

- Tax consulting fees of EURSM (H1 2022: EUR 0.2m)

- Projectrelated consulting services in the context of digitalisation as well as costs of initial testing, acquisition and use
of new technologies in the amount of EUR 0.5m (H1 2022: EUR 0.5m).

- Costs related to the acquisition andegration of Whitehelm Capital of EUR Om (H1 2022: EUR 1.7m)

The decrease in other taxes is attributable to a-ofigtem in the previous period relating to VAT payments for previous
years in the Netherlands.

Vehicle and travel expenses as wellaalvertising were again on an increasing level after the declining travel and contact
restrictions in connection with the Covi® pandemic.

Recruitment, training and temporary employment costs increased mainly due to higher recruitment costs relateal to gl
growth and the reorgasation of management structures and the leadership team.

The item contributions, fees and insurance costs break down into contributions of EUR 1.1m (H1 2022: EUR 1.2m),
insurance in the amount of EUR 1.5m (H1 2022: EUR 0.%)ark fees of EUR 0.2m (H1 2022: EUR 0.4m).

The donations include donations to charitable organisatio

management had decided to support charitable organisations annually with up to 1% of the GoEREAMYA (since 2018
until 2021 with up to 1% of operating income).
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This item includegnpairment losses for other trade receivables and other asseits the amount of EUR.1m (H1 2022:
EUR0.1m).

PATRIZIA generatedesult from participations of EUR 26.5m in H1 2023 (H1 2022: EUR 27.4w%). Overall, Gome
from participations of EUR 26.1m (H1 2022: EUR 26.7m) was related to the Dawonia Gmigstoent.

Theearningsfrom companies accounted for using the equity methamtaled EUR-0.9min the reporting perioH1 2022:
EUR-0.2m).

The result fronparticipations and earnings from companies accounted for using the equity method reflect the investment
income from the cénvestments and, in the case of Dawonia GmbH, the investment result also includes management fees

and performanceelated fees.

Result from participations

EUR k H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Dawonia GmbH 26,078 26,725 -2.4Y%
TRIUVA 11 9 22.2y
Closedend funds business 23 513 -95.6%
Other 424 47 -993.5%
Result from participations 26,534 27,200 -2.4%
Earnings fromcompanies accounted for using the equity

method -950 -189 402.1%
Total 25,585 27,011 -5.3%

Cost from the deconsolidation of subsidiariesnainly relate to the deconsolidation of property companies in which
properties are temporarily held on the own balance sheet.

Compared to the same period last yeaeorganisation expensestotalled EUR 0.3m (H1 2022: EUR 2.3m). The
reorganisation expenses recognised in the previous period mainly result from continued strategic investments to further
diversify and globalise the company. These were mainly expenses for severance payments and current salaries during the
release phase.&kor gani sati on expenses recognised in the current pel
implemented in November 2022. Provisions from the reorganisation that are no longer regeinedased to the income

statement. In the first halfea 2023, reorganisation incomeamounted to EUR 0.1m (H1 2022: EUR Om) due to reversals of

provisions recognised in the income statement.
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In the first haHyear 2023, thenet profit for the period declined to EUR 5.7m (H1 2022: EUR 15.681;9%), which is
mainly due to the reduction of EBIT&#din line withmanagemenexpectations

Reconciliation of net profit for the period

EUR k H1 2023 H1 2022 Change

EBITDA 28,365 54,534 -48.0%
Appreciation/amortisation of other intangible assets?, software and
rights of use, depreciation of property, plant and equipment as well

financial investments -14,226 -24,537 -42.0%
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 14,139 29,996 -52.9%
Finance income 5,401 652 727.9%
Financial expenses -4,449 -3,977 11.9%
Other financial result =722 0 /

Result from currency translation -3,428 274 >1,000.09
Net finance costs -3,198 -3,599 -11.1%
Earnings before taxes (EBT) 10,941 26,398 -58.6%
Income taxes -5,206 -11,351 -54.1Y%
Net profit for the period 5,735 15,047 -61.9%

* In particular fund management contracts transferred as part of the recent acquisitions

The following section discusses the relevant items ofélenciliation of consolidated net profit.

Appreciation/amortisation of other intangible asses, software and rights of use, depreciation of property, plant and
equipment as well as financial investmentdecreased to EUR 14.2m (H1 2022: EUR 24-8&0%) and mainly includes
amortisation of fund management contracts and licenses of EUR 6.4m (H1 2022: EUR 6.3m), amortisation of rights of use of
EUR 5.0m (H1 2022: EUR 5.0m), amortisation of software anédaefon of operating and office equipment of EUR 2.5m

(H1 2022: EUR 7.2m).

The decrease in appreciation/amortisation and depreciation mainly results from the extraordinary depreciation of the
intangible assets of the technology investment BrickVeshénprevious period. These impairment losses consisted of the
impairment of goodwill of EUR 5.6m and the amortisation of software of EUR 4.1m.

Financial incomeincreased to EUR 5.4m, after EUR 0.7m in the previous year (+727.9%), which was primarily due to the
current positive interest rates on cash and term deposits.

Financial income was offset ffipancial expensesof EUR 4.4m (H1 2022: EUR 4.0m, +11.9%ijnlyndue to interest on
bonded loans and interest from the compounding of pension obligations as well @aiebabilities.

The other financial result amountedE&JR-0.7m (H1 2022: EUR 0m) and mainly includes expenses regarding the valuation
of financial assets.

In the first halyear 2023, ke result from currency translationamounted to EUR3.4m (H1 2022: EURD.3m) This
includes realised exchange rate effects of EUBm (H1 2022: EUR 1.6m) as well as{tash exchange rate effects of EUR
-1.6m (H1 2022: EURL.9m).The change in realised exchange rate efféxtmainly due to thehange in the exchange rate
of the Japanese yen against the euro.

Income taxesamounted to EUR 5.2m in the first hydfar 2023 compared to EUR.4min the previous perio@54.1%. The
tax rate (income taxes in relation to EBT) wa$%vin the reporting period (H1 Z0243.0%). The reason for the increase
mainly results from additional tax expenses for previous yesaveell as valuation effects on deferred taxes.

20



PATRIZIA SEHalfyear Financial Report January to June 202

PATRIZIA's strong balance sheet and financial situation continue to provide a good basis for the successful implementation
of its midterm strategy.

PATRIZIA's kegsset and financial data at a glance

EUR k 30.06.2023 31.12.2022 Change
Total assets 1,989,144 2,045,874 -2.8%
Equity (excl. nogontrolling interests) 1,221,692 1,258,992 -3.0%
Equity Ratio 61.4% 61.5% -0.1 PF
Cash and caskquivalents 306,332 349,518 -12.4%
+ Term deposits 50,492 72,380 -30.2%
- Bank loans -120,554 -91,688 31.5%
- Bonded loans -158,000 -158,000 0.0%
= Net cash (+) / net debt) 78,270 172,209 -54.5%
Net Equity Ratio! 71.4% 70.1% 1.3 PF

*Net equity ratio: Equity (excl. neontrolling interests) divided by total net assets (total assetsflaascialliabilities covered by cash in hand)
PP= Percentage points

The Group’dotal assetsis almost stable with EUR 2.0bn as at 30 June 2023.

Equity (excluding norcontrolling interests) decreased moderately to EUR 1.2bn (31 December 2022: 1.3bn). This is,
among other things, due to the dividend payment to shareholders in the repmeting for financial year 2022. In addition,
the reduction of the capital reserve due to the sharelagk programme in the reporting period had a negative impact on
equity.

Thenet equity ratioslightly improved to 71.4% (31 December 2022: 70.1%).

We refer tahe statement of changes in equity for further information on changes in eduity first halyear2023.
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PATRIZIA ldeavailable liquidity of EUR 305.2m as at 30 June 2023 compared to EUR 375.1m at the end of 2022.

AvailableLiquidity

EUR k 30.06.2023 31.12.2022
Cash and cash equivalents 306,332 349,518
Term deposits 50,492 72,380
Liquidity 356,824 421,898
Regulatory reserve for asset management companies -45,196 -41,265
Liquidity, PATRIZIA cannot fremtgess 6,417 -5,518
Available liquidity 305,210 375,115

Total Liquidityamounedto EUR 356.8m (31 December 2022: EUR 421.9m). The decline since the beginning of the year is
in particular due to the dividend payment to the shareholders, payments for purchase of sharesmftraling interests
as well as the share biyack programra. A total of EUR 50.5m is invested in shHertm deposits.

However, PATRIZIA cannot freely access the full amount. Cash and cash equivalents of EUR 45.2m in total must be
permanently retained for asset management companies and etomied funds in ordeto comply with the relevant
regulatory requirements. Furthermore, liquidity in the amount of EUR 6.4m is tied up in consolidated companies, which
PATRIZIA cannot freely access.

Thefinancial liabilitiesincreased from EUR 249.7m EJR 278.6m as at 30 June Z@ompared to 31 December 202,
particular due to theddition ofinterim financing.

The bonded loamith an original loan amoumf EUR 300.0m raised in 2017 consists of tranches of five, seven and ten
years.The outstandig loan amount totals EUR 188, with fixed interest rate payments onlg the first halyear 2023 the
shortterm bonded loan tranche in the amount of EUR 89.0m was reclassified due to repayment in the first half year of 2024.
Remaining bonded loan trames as at 30 June 2023 are recognised under-cwrent bonded loans with EUR 69.0m
(maturing in 2027and under current bonded loans with EUR 89(fraturing in 202).

The shorterm bank loans of EUR20.6m relate tointerim financingof assets temparily consolidated on PATRIZIA's
balance sheet.

Financial liabilities developed as follows as against the eB@2#

Financial liabilities

EUR k 30.06.2023 31.12.2022 Change
Noncurrent bonded loans 69,000 158,000 -56.3%
Shortterm bonded loans 89,000 0 /
Shortterm bank loans 120,554 91,688 31.5%
Total financial liabilities 278,554 249,688 11.6%

A detailed maturity profile of the financial liabilit{Esancial liabilities used as part of the key assets famaincial data for
calculating net cash/net debt as well as the net equity ratio: bank, gage and bonded loans) as well as other financial
liabilitiescan be found in not8 in the notes to the consolidated interim financial statements.
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An overview of all PATRI ZI A6s participations, assets under
table.

PATRIZIA's capital allocation as at 30 June 2023

Investec
Assets unde capital (fai Investec
Managemer value' capital (at cost  Participation:
EUR N EURn EURn in %
Thirdparty business 48,165.0 0.0
Colnvestments 9,757.4 601.3 132.4
Real estate- residential 5,372.4 517.7 53.0
thereofDawonia GmbH 5,372.4 176.41 51.7 5.1
thereof Dawonia profit entitlements 340.11 0.0 0.1
Real estate- balanced 2,595.3 14.0 15.4
Real estate- commercial 657.4 1491 10.3
Infrastructure 1,118.8 51.5 50.3
Venture capital 13.4 3.2 3.4
Principal investments 2.0 2.2
Other balance sheet items 471.02
Tiedtup investment capital 57,924.3 1,074.5
Available liquidity 305.2
Total investment capital 57,924.3 1,379.7
of which debt (bonded loans) 158.0
of whichequity PATRIZIA (without roontrolling interests) 1,221.7

* After deduction of deferred taxes from the valuation according to IFRS 9
2 Including goodwill and fund management contr=cts

PATRIZIA selectively invests Group equipaitnership with its institutional clients, in the form ofingestments of which
Dawonia Gmblis the largest cenvestment.

PATRIZIA holdsstakein a very attractive residential real estate portfolio via Dawonia GmbH. With 23,009 flats,

Dawonia is one of the largest housing companies in Munich and southern Germany. For 80 years, Dawonia has been
planning, developing, building and managifghtfjuality, affordable apartments which are in high demand, particularly in

urban growth regions. The company therefore is very well positioned in this market segment. Aédafidh&housing

stock is concentrated in the 20 largest locations in south&grmany, i.e. in conurbations such as Munich and the
surrounding area, Nuremberg, Erlangen, Regensburg and Wirzburg. Dawonia is now also active outside Bavaria, for example
in the state ofHesse.

Furthermore, PATRIZIA holds an interest in OSCAR LyxSC@r6 (Dawonigerformance fee claimd see table above),

which entitles PATRIZIA to a variable profit share in connection with the Dawonia investment. The investor consortium and
PATRIZIA recently agreed to extend the investment phase of the fuitekmid he initial investment phase was previously

set for 10 years and could have ended in 2023. Against this backdrop, a decision on the possible retention or sale of the
5.1% stake in Dawonia GmbH and the realisation of the entitlement to the variaklshaa is now expected mtérm
accordingly.

In the first half of 2023further coinvestments were made line with strategyparticularly in the area of infrastructure
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2 Development of opportunities and risks

PATRIZIA is exposed to both oppottasiand risks as part of its business activitiBATRIZIA's risk management process is
designed to identify, record and monitor relevant risk positions and to define and implement suitable control measures

The risk environment in the first half of Z)%as ongoingstrongly influenced by developments in connection with the
Ukraine crisis. In addition, the current dynamic market environment, particwithilyegard to interest rate developments

and inflation, poses major challenges for key areas of ZAXR business activitieddowever, the assessment of the
developments in the risk environment during the year does not lead to any substantial changes in the statements made in
the GroupAnnual Report 2@with regard to PATRIZIA's risk coverage poténtia

Furthermore, statements made in the risk report containd®l AT R | 2022 GrdupAnnual Report continue to apply. For a
detailed presentation of the opportunities and risks in the Group, please refer to the explanations in chapter 4 d? the 202
GroupAnnual Report.

3 Guidance

Due to the investment restraint of the Company's global clients and currently very low transaction volumes in the market for
real estate and infrastructure, the Company's management no l@xgercts a significant recovery in business activities in

the second half of 2023. For this reason, PATRIZIA is adjusting its forecast for assets under management to a range of EUR
57.0 - 62.0bn (from previously EUR 60-65.0bn) for the 2023 fiscal yearsaa precautionary measure. EBITDA is expected

to be in a range of EUR 50.00.0m (from previously EUR 50-®0.0m). The EBITDA margin is expected to be in a range of

16.7 - 21.2% (fronpreviouslyl5.6 - 24.3%).

The details of thadjustedforecast for the 2023 financial year are shown in the following table.

Guidance FY 2023

Previous
Guidance range 2023 Guidance range 2022
2022  H1 2023 min max max max
Assets under Management EUR br 59.1 57.9 57.0 62.0 60.0 65.0
EBITDA EUR N 78.9 28.4 50.0 70.0 50.0 90.0
EBITDA margin % 24.0% 18.3% 16.7% 21.2% 15.6% 24.3%

Augsburg, D August 2023

The Executive Directors

Dr Asoka W6hrmann Christoph Glaser Slava Shafir
CEO CFO COO

/f

Wolfgang Egger
Founder

e

This report contains certain forwalabking statements that relate in particular to thesiness development of PATRIZIA, the general economic and regulatory environment and other
factors to which PATRIZIA is exposed. These fodaakihg statements are based on current estimates and assumptions by the company made in good faith anelcarte sabjous
risks and uncertainties that could render a forwtoking statement or estimate inaccurate or cause actual results to differ from the results currently expected.
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Consolidated financial
statements

Consolidated balance sheet

Assets

EUR k 30.06.2023 31.12.2022
Goodwill 376,213 381,253
Other intangible assets 100,094 107,134
Software 7,251 8,080
Rights of use 23,183 26,715
Investment property 1,892 1,892
Equipment 10,713 9,721
Participations in companies accounted for using the equity method 3,786 6,545
Participations 660,379 664,612
Non-current borrowings and other loans 51,977 28,194
Other norcurrent assets 2,866 3,497
Deferred taxes 8,318 8,341

Totalnon-current assets 1,246,672 1,245,986
Inventories 191,946 159,781
Securities 20,841 29,602
Shortterm derivatives 0 444
Current tax assets 20,712 29,312
Current receivables and other current assets 202,641 231,231
Cash andtash equivalents 306,332 349,518

Total current assets 742,472 799,888

Total assets 1,989,144 2,045,874
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Equity and liabilities

EUR k 30.06.2023 31.12.2022
Share capital 85,803 86,175
Capital reserves 62,655 67,181
Retained earnings

Legal reserves 505 505
Currency translation difference -4,868 -2,502
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans according to IAS 19 4,809 4,807
Revaluation reserve according to IFRS 9 199,112 189,691
Consolidatedinappropriated profit 873,677 913,135
Noncontrolling interests 48,427 66,346

Total equity 1,270,119 1,325,338
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities 114,938 121,417
Retirement benefit obligations 17,293 17,715
Bonded loans 69,000 158,000
Longterm accruals 10,214 10,122
Non-current liabilities 134,032 134,628
Leasing liabilities 16,550 18,339

Total noncurrent liabilities 362,028 460,221
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Shortterm bank loans 120,554 91,688
Shortterm financial derivatives 267 0
Shortterm bonded loans 89,000 0
Other provisions 10,921 17,238
Current liabilitiest 113,122 124,031
Shortterm leasing liabilities 7,427 8,950
Income tax liabilitiest 15,706 18,407

Total currentliabilities 356,998 260,315

Total equity and liabilities 1,989,144 2,045,874

# The previous yearo6s figures were restated in |ine with
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Consolidated income statement

EUR k Q2 2023 Q2 2022 H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Revenues 67,935 77,545 130,797 158,476 -17.5%
Changes in inventories 0 -77 0 -15,950 -100.0¥
Other operating income 1,333 4,969 4,101 5,627 -27.1%
Income from theleconsolidation of

subsidiaries 1,055 18,087 1,077 18,087 94.0%
Total operating performance 70,322 100,525 135,975 166,241 -18.2%
Cost of materials -59 -154 -118 -494 -76.1%
Cost of purchased services -4,431 -3,628 -8,541 -9,356 -8.7%
Staff costs -45,430 -43,462 -85,789 -82,499 4.0%
Other operating expenses -21,564 -23,987 -38,433 -41,867 -8.2%
Impairment result for trade receivables a

contract assets -48 -68 -53 -73 -26.7%
Result from participations 3,523 3,518 26,534 27,200 -2.4%
Earnings from companies accounted for

using the equity method -1,012 -189 -950 -189 402.1y
Cost from the deconsolidation of

subsidiaries -3 -2,122 -3 -2,122 -99.9%
EBITDAR 1,299 30,431 28,622 56,840 -49.6%
Reorganisation income 54 0 54 0 /

Reorganisation expenses -169 -2,307 -311 -2,307 -86.5%
EBITDA 1,184 28,124 28,365 54,534 -48.0%
Appreciation/amortisation of other

intangible assets, software and rights of

use, depreciation of property, plant and

equipment as well as financiavestments -7,101 -16,853 -14,226 -24,537 -42.0%
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBI1 -5,917 11,272 14,139 29,996 -52.9%
Financial income 3,183 241 5,401 652 727.9Y
Financial expenses -2,601 -2,297 -4,449 -3,977 11.9%
Other financial result -878 0 -722 0 /

Result from currency translation -3,405 -141 -3,428 274 >1,000.09
Earnings before taxes (EBT) 9,618 9,074 10,941 26,398 -58.6%
Income taxes 2,917 -6,610 -5,206 -11,351 -54.1Y%
Net profit for the period -6,701 2,464 5,735 15,047 -61.9%
Attributable to shareholders of the paren

company 6,411 1,722 6,064 13,408 -54.8%
Attributable to norcontrolling interests -291 741 -329 1,639 -120.1%
Earnings per share (undiluted) in EUR -0.07 0.02 0.07 0.15 -53.2%
Earnings peshare (diluted) in EUR -0.07 0.02 0.07 0.15 -53.2%
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

EUR k Q2 2023 Q2 2022 H1 2023 H1 2022
Net profit for the period -6,701 2,464 5,735 15,047
Items of other comprehensive income reclassified to net p
for the period
Profit/loss arising on the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations 2,456 -1,639 -2,297 -2,340
Items of other comprehensive incomvéhout reclassification
to net profit for the period
Value adjustments resulting from equity instruments
measured including capital gains (IFRS 9) -7,956 15,895 -8,107 16,485
Value adjustments resulting from remeasurements of
defined benefiplans (IAS 19) 0 -270 2 -270
Other comprehensive income -5,500 13,986 -10,403 13,874
Total comprehensive income for the reporting period -12,201 16,450 -4,668 28,921
Attributable to shareholders of the parent company -10,734 15,738 -3,189 27,225
Attributable to norcontrolling interests -1,467 712 -1,479 1,696
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Consolidated cash flow statement

EUR k H1 2023 H1 2022
Net profit for the period 5,735 15,047
Income taxesecognised through profit or loss 5,206 11,351
Financial expenses recognised through profit or loss 4,449 3,977
Financial income recognised through profit or loss -5,401 -652
Income from participations through profit or loss -26,534 -27,200
Earnings from companies accounted for using the equity method 950 164
Income from unrealised currency translation recognised through profit or loss 1,609 2,650
Income from unrealised other financial results 711 0
Income from the disposal of othtangible assets, software, rights of use and

equipment recognised through profit or loss 9 60
Income from divestments of financial assets recognised through profit or loss -1,060 6
Amortisation of other intangible assets, software and rightssef depreciation of

property, plant and equipment as well as financial investments 14,590 24,627
Writeups longterm assets -365 -90
Expenses of the deconsolidation of subsidiaries 3 2,122
Income from the deconsolidation of subsidiaries -1,077 -18,087
Other non castitems 522 4,983
Changes in inventories, receivables and other assets that are not attributable to

investment activities 7,556 27,520
Proceeds and payments from the temporarily consolidation of investment propertie

(Inventories) and related financing (Loans) for items in which the turnover is quick,

amounts are large, and the maturities are short 6,435 73
Changes in liabilities that are not attributable to financing activities -11,391 -9,865
Distributed income from participations 27,689 28,000
Interest paid -5,587 -5,911
Interest received 5,169 695
Income tax payments -4,231 -7,476
Cash flow from operating activities 11,055 42,071
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EUR k H1 2023 H1 2022
Payments fomvestments in other intangible assets, software and equipment -2,668 -2,055
Payments received from the disposal of intangible assets and equipment 248 62
Payments received from the disposal of securities and $aort investments 32,800 75,584
Payments for the acquisition of participations -4,307 -5,142
Payments received from the disposal of participations 244 1,477
Payments for investments in companies accounted for using the equity method -1,811 -25,319
Payment received througtistributions of companies accounted for using the equity 18 7,575
Payments received from the repayment of shares of companies accounted for usir

equity method 0 9,595
Payments received from the disposal of companies accounted forthsiegyuity

method 3,724 0
Payments received from the repayment of loans to companies with participation in 482 0
Payments for loans to companies with participation interest 0 -123
Payments received from the repayment of other loans 1,130 39,019
Payments for other loans -25,583 0
Changes from hedges 711 0
Payments received from the disposal of consolidated companies and other busine 1 25,885
Payments for the disposal of consolidated companies and other business units 0 -18,973
Payments for the acquisition of consolidated companies and other business units -2,616 -45,231
Cash flow from investing/divesting activities 2,371 62,356
Repayment of loans 0 -103,450
Repayment of leasing liabilities 4,741 -5,221
Interest paid -120 -153
Payments for purchase of shares of ramtrolling interests -16,803 0
Payments of profit shares to naontrolling interests -274 274
Payments of dividends to shareholders -28,288 -28,316
Payments for buppacks of owrshares -7,445 -18,895
Payments received from increase of capital stock 637 0
Cash flow from financing activities -57,034 -156,308
Change in cash and cash equivalents -43,608 -51,881
Cash and cash equivalents as at 01.01. 349,518 341,260
Effects ofchanges in foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 422 -891
Cash and cash equivalents as at 30.06. 306,332 288,487
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Retainec Remeasurements Revaluatiol Equity of the
earnings Currenc) defined benefi reserve Consolidater shareholders ¢ Equity of nor
Capita (lega translatior plans accordingt according t¢ unappropriate: the paren controlling

EUR k Share capite reserve reserves difference IAS 1¢ IFRS ¢ profit company interests Total
As at 01.01.2022 88,620 89,831 505 2,317 99 179,716 921,720 1,282,809 35,694 1,318,503
Net profit for the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 13,408 13,408 1,639 15,047
Other comprehensive income 0 0 0 -2,269 -252 16,338 0 13,817 58 13,874
Total comprehensive Income 0 0 0 -2,269 -252 16,338 13,408 27,225 1,696 28,921
Dividend distribution to shareholders in cast 0 0 0 0 0 0 -28,316 -28,316 0 -28,316
Payout of profit shares to narontrolling
interests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -441 -441
Share busback -1,212 -18,441 0 0 0 0 0 -19,652 0 -19,652
Disposal of shares 831 15,207 0 0 0 0 0 16,038 0 16,038
As at 30.06.2022 88,240 86,597 505 48 -153 196,054 906,813 1,278,104 36,949 1,315,053
As at 01.01.2023 86,175 67,181 505 -2,502 4,807 189,691 913,132 1,258,989 66,346 1,325,336
Net profit of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,064 6,064 -329 5,735
Other comprehensive income 0 -0 0 -2,366 2 -6,889 0 -9,253 -1,150 -10,403
Total comprehensive Income 0 -0 0 -2,366 2 -6,889 6,064 -3,189 -1,479 -4,668
Capital increase 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 637 637
Dividend distribution to shareholders in cast 0 0 0 0 0 0 -28,288 -28,288 0 -28,288
Noncontrolling interests arising from the sal
of shares 0 0 0 0 0 0 838 838 -838 0
Payout of profit shares to narontrolling
interests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 274 274
Reclassification 0 0 0 0 0 0 440 440 -440 0
Purchases of shares of naontrolling
interests 0 0 0 -1 0 16,309 -16,804 -495 -16,308 -16,803
Other Changes 0 0 0 0 0 0 -923 -923 0 -923
Share buypack -655 -6,789 0 0 0 0 0 7,444 0 -7,444
Disposal of shares 283 2,263 0 0 0 0 0 2,545 0 2,545
As at 30.06.2023 85,803 62,655 505 -4,869 4,809 199,112 874,459 1,222,474 47,645 1,270,119
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Notes to the interimconsolidated
financial statements

PATRIZISE(hereinafter also referred to as PATRIZIA or the Group) is a listed stock corporation. The registered office of the
company is Fuggerstia 26,86150 Augsburg (Augsburg Local Court, I3RBL6).

PATRIZIA islaadingpartner forglobalreal assetsand one of the leading independent real estate investment companies in
Europe. As at 30 Jurg923, 993 employees (FTEErveits clientsacross 28 locdons worldwide PATRIZIA provides a wide
range of services from assendportfolio management and implementation of purchase and sales transactions for almost all
real estateand infrastructureclasses to alternative investments and project developmdtg<lients include institutional
(semi)professionaland privateinvestors such as insurance firms, pensijomovidersand sovereignwvealth fundsfrom
Germany, Europe, the US and Asia. PATRIZIA develops bespoke products for its clients in line iwdivitheit return
expectations, diversification objectives and risk styles.

1 Principles applied in the preparation of the interim consolidated
financial statements

The interim consolidated financial statements of PATRIZIA for the first 28281 Jamary to 30 June 2@ have been
prepared in accordance with A 115 of the German Securiti e
Financi al Reportingdé and the | FRS as well as i beapptechp!l i ance
in accordance with § 315e of the Handelsgesetzbuch (8iGBrman Commercial Code). All mandatory pronouncements of

the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that were adopted by the EU as part of the endorsement process, i.e.
publishel in the Official Journal of the EU (by the balance sheet date) have been applied.

In the opinion of thé&s r osunpadagement, the present unaudited interim consolidated financial statements as at 30 June
2023 contain all necessary information to ensurewetand fair view of the compaiyperformance and financial position in

the reporting periodA review according to IDW PS 900 has been performed by the auditor. A certificate was not issued in
accordance with the engagement. The results achieved inirstesix months of 202 are not necessarily an indicator of
future results or an overall result to b&pected for the financial year 282s a whole.

As part of the preparation of the consolidated interim financial statements for the interim report in accordance with 1AS 34
ol nterim Fi nanmanagémerRef PATRIZIA mgtdimake adsessments and estimates as well as assumptions
that influencethe application of accounting principles in the Group and the reporting of assets and liabilities as well as
income and expenses. The actual amounts may differ from these estimates.

These interim consolidated financial statemeatsfundamentally basedn the accounting policies as those applied to the
consolidated financial statements for the ZD8inancial year. A detailed description of the basis of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements and the accounting policiesbeafound in the IRS notes to the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 20 the 202 PATRIZIA Grodmnual Report.

New standards and interpretations to be appliecbfs Januar2023 have no material impact on the interim consolidated
financial statements.

These interim financial statements are prepared in HatR)Unless otherwise stated, the amounts including the previous

year 6s figures ar e s ho wrshoulchbe hotedthas differdnses mdy ocEun in the useeo)rBunded . It
amounts and percentages due to commercial rounding.
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2 Consolidated group

All subsidiaries are included in the interim consolidated financial statements of PATRIZIA. The group oiesubsidides

all companies that are controlled by PATRIZIA. In addition to the parent company, the consolidated grouplBfludes
subsidiaries (31 Decemb@022: 137). They are included in the interim consolidated financial statements indacem
with the rules of full consolidation.

In addition there arefive equity investments (31 Decemb2022: six), listed below, that are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

Participations in companiesaccounted for using the equity

method
30.06.2023 31.12 2022
Carrying Carrying amouni
Entity Head office Equity Investmer amounts EUR EUR I
PATRIZIA WohnModul | SIGAY Luxemburg 10.10% 1,241 1,553
Evana AG Saarbriicken 16.45% 1,141 1,423
Cognotekt GmbH Kdln 35.67Y% 0 278
control.IT Unternehmensberatung GribH Bremen n.a. 0 2,824
ASK PATRIZIA (GQ) LLP Manchester 50.00% 438 424
PATRIZIA MBK FUND MANAGEMENT PTY LTD Sydney 50.00% 966 44

*Profitable sale of th&0.00% share in Q1 2023

Furthermore, there are holdings 30.0%in the limited liability capital of a project development company (legal form: GmbH

& Co. KG) an80.0%in the associated general partner GmbH. There is no significant influence overntigangoas it

cannot be managed or significantly influenced on account of company law regulations and there is no right to make
appointments to its executive bodies. The shares in this project development company are measured at fair value through
other compehensive income (FVTOCI).

As at 30 June 2023, 4€ompanies (31 Decemb@022: 47) have not been included in the consolidated group as at the end

of the reporting period as they have only minor or no business operations and are immaterial to the Geopeaadd fair
view of its financial position and performance.

The number of Group companies included in the consolidated financial statements developed as follows in the reporting
period:

Transactions material to the Group are explained below under business combinations, disposals and intragroup restructuring.

Subsidiaries

As at 01.01.2023 137
Companies founded 6
Companies deconsolidated 4
As at30.06.2023 139
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By way of a purchase agreement dated 6 2082, PATRIZIA acquitehe entire issued share capital BiDVANTAGE
Investment Partners A/S ADVANTAGE InvestmeRartner® )a, diversified mulimanager with both institutional and
wholesale distribution channelBhe closingf the transactioriook place on IDecembei2022.

Locatedin Copenhagen, ADVANTAGE Investment Partmarages AUM afverEURL.2bn as at puchase agreement date.
The initial consolidation was carried out ad &@ecembe2022.
a) Acquired assets and liabilities

Within the share deall00% of the shares AADVANTAGE Investment Partnerese acquired. The followirfgir values
regardingassets ad liabilitieshave been identified based tiee Purchase PricAllocation(PPA).

Fair value

EUR k

Other intangible assets 4,910
Rights of use 334
Equipment 62
Participations 41
Total noncurrent assets 5,437
Current receivables arather current assets 535
Cash and cash equivalents 1,951
Total current assets 2,486
Total assets 7,833
Deferred tax liabilities 1,080
Leasing liabilities 344
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,424
Other provisions 32
Current liabilities 561
Taxliabilities 148
Total current liabilities 742
Total liabilities 2,165
Net assets 5,667
Goodwill 13,252
Total consideration paid 18,919

The finalisation of the purchase price allocatiook part in the measurement period under IFRS 3.
The resulting preliminary goodwill from the acquisition amounts talB|2B2k The acquisition rationale includes potentials
arising from the expansion of business araad products, the presence in geograpdl markets, future earnings prospects

as well as synergy potentials.

The goodwill will not be deductible for tax purposes in future periods.
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b) Consideration transferred and transactionasts

The consideration paid (without transaction costs) of EURL®R,consists of cash and cash equivalent€EbfR 12,909k,
treasury shares oEUR 2,221k as well as a contingent consideration {eathof EUR 3,790KThe earrout component is
only payable on achievement of certain, -gedined business targets in thetéire. The 231,321 treasury shares were
measured at their closing price (XETRA) of EUR 9.60 as at the acquisiti¢ciakitey)

In the financial year2022, the transaction costs already incurred in the amount of E2BOk (2021: EUR 0k) were
recognisedhrough profit and loss and reported under other operating expenses.

c) Net cash outflowfor the acquisition
Net outflow of cash tunds for the acquisition

EUR k

Consideration paid in thefm of cash 12,909
Less cash acquired 1,951
Net cashoutflow 10,958

d) Effects of the acquisition @ consolidated profit

From the net profit for the period as at 30 June 2023, EL3R is attributable to the acquired ADVANTAGE Investment
Partners subsidiaries. Of the revenues in the first half of 2023, EQIk results from the operations of the acquired
subsidiaries and mainly relates to total service fee income.

The companies listed below left the PATRIZIA consolidated group with income from deconsolidation1@7BUR
(H1 2@2: EUR18,087K and an expensom deconsolidation of EURk (H1 2022:EUR-2,122) in the reporting period.

Companies- result from deconsolidation

EUR k H1 2023
PATRIZIA Grundinvest Augsburg Acht GmbH B&o. 1,055
PATRIZIA Grundinvest Augsburg Zwolf GmbH & Co. KG 22
SPF 111 US HUH GP ApS -3
Total 1,074

In the reporting period there were no internal restructuentivities recognised within the Group.

These interim consolidated financial statements are generally based on the same consolidation methods that were applied to
the consolidated financial statements for the 20#nancial year. A etailed description of the basis for preparing the
consolidated financial statements and the accounting and valuation methods can be found in the IFRS Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 Decembe2202
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3 Notes to the balancesheet and income statement

3.1Financial instruments

3.1.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities
The tablébelowshows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assetframtialliabilities, including their levels in

the fairvalue hierarchy.

Financial assets and liabilities 30.06.2023

Carrying amounts Fair value
Financia
FVTOG assets a Othetr
Mandaton equity amortisec financia
EUR k FVTP instruments cost liabilities Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets at fair value
Participations 659,955 X
Other norcurrent financial assets 6,720 X
Other Loans 4,109 X
Securities 20,841 X
Derivative financial instruments 0
31,669 659,955
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Other loans 41,149
Trade receivables and other financial assets 197,280
Cash and Cash Equivalents 306,332
544,760

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Financial liabilities (bank, mortgage and bondet

loans) 278,554

Trade payables 1,906

Liabilities from services purchased before the e

of the reporting period 43,422

Contractual liabilities of prepayments from

property sales 2

Liabilities from settled performance fees owed

attributable to future periods 0

Other liabilities 164,631
488,516

*see chapter 3.1.3 assessment of the fair value

36



PATRIZIASE| Half-year Financial Rport January to June 2023

Financial assets and liabilities 31.12.2022

Carrying amounts Fair value
Financia
FVTOG assets a Other
Mandaton equity amortisec financia
EUR k FVTP instruments cost liabilities  Level ] Level 2 Level &
Financial assets at fair value
Participations 664,377 X
Other norcurrent financial assets 6,720 X
Other Loans 3,300
Securities 29,602 X
Derivative financial instruments 444 X
40,066 664,377
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Other loans 18,174
Trade receivables and other financial assets 225,024
Cash and Cash Equivalents 349,518
592,716
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Financial liabilities (bank, mortgage and bonde!
loans) 249,688
Trade payables 4,123
Liabilities from services purchased before the €
of the reporting period 45,073
Contractual liabilities of prepayments from
property sales 0
Liabilities from settled performance fees owed
attributable to future periods 0
Other liabilities 169,965
468,849

37



PATRIZIASE| Half-year Financial Rport January to June 2023

3.1.2 Participations
Participationsshowed the following developmentthe busines year

Participations

30.06.2023 31.12.2022
Dawonie Other Total carrying Dawoni Other Total carryin
Dawonie Carry participations amount Dawonii Carry_participations amoun
As at 01.01. 179,680 421,593 63,340 664,612 177,418 416,229 40,329 633,976
Additions 0 0 4,416 4,416 0 0 23,762 23,762
Changes in the
consolidated
group 0 0 0 0 0 0 73 73
Disposals 0 0 -370 -370 0 0 5,684 5,684
Positive changes
in market value 0 0 583 583 6,764 22,407 8,344 37,515
Negative changes
in market value -1,317 4,338 -3,866 9,521 -4,502 -17,042 -2,523 -24,067
Foreign exchange
differences 0 0 659 659 0 0 961 961
Closing Balance 178,363 417,255 64,761 660,379 179,680 421,593 63,340 664,612

PATRIZIA holds stakein a very attractive residential real estate portfolio via Dawonia GmbH. With £23089 flats,

Dawonia is one of the largest housing companies in Munich and southern Germany. For 80 years, Dawonia has been
planning, developing, building and managifghtfjuality, affordable apartments which are in high demand, particularly in

urban growth regions. The company therefore is very well positioned in this market segment. Aédafidh&housing

stock is concentrated in the 20 largest locations in south&grmany, i.e. in conurbations such as Munich and the
surrounding area, Nuremberg, Erlangen, Regensburg and Wirzburg. Dawonia is now also active outside Bavaria, for example
in the state ofHesse.

Furthermore, PATRIZIA holds an interest in OSCAR LyxSC@r6 (Dawonigerformance fee claimd see table above),

which entitles PATRIZIA to a variable profit share in connection with the Dawonia investment. The investor consortium and
PATRIZIA recently agreed to extend the investment phase of the fuekmid he initial investment phase was previously

set for 10 years and could have ended in 2023. Against this backdrop, a decision on the possible retention or sale of the
5.1% stake in Dawonia GmbH and the realisation of the entitlement to the variaklshaa is now expected mtérm
accordingly.

The result from participations of E@R,534kin the reporting period (H2022: EUR27,000K stemsfrom the participations
in Dawonia GmbH, TRIUVA / IVG Logistik and fleenclosedend funds businesd$or private and semjrofessional
investors.

Result from participations

EUR k Q2 2023 Q2 2022 H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Performancébased shareholder

remuneration 0 0 19,908 20,408 -2.4%
Services provided ashareholder

contributions 2,264 2,353 4,558 4,706 -3.2%
Return on equity employed 1,258 1,165 2,068 2,086 -0.8%
Total 3,523 3,518 26,534 27,200 -2.4%
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3.1.3 Assessment of the fair value of financial assets
The following tables show tivaluation techniques used to assess level 3 fair values and the significant unobservable inputs
used.

Valuation technique fair value

Context between Importamon-
Important norobservable input  observable input factors and the
Type Valuation technique factors valuation at fair value

Valuation model considers the
individual shares of participatior
Equ|ty investments as well as assessment basis in
particularly the fair value of the - Shares of participations (0.01%
net assets (Net asset value). Th 100%)- important assessment Estimated fair value wéii

essentialvalue driver is the basis: the fair value of the net increase (decrease), if the
respective Fair Value of the assets 2023 of the participation: assessment basis increase
contained property assets. (EUR Om EUR 3,539m) (decrease)
Noncurrent loans

Since these are convertible loar Estimated fair value would
the valuation model considers tt increase (decrease), if the
fair value of the net assets of thi - the fair value of the net assets assessment basis increase
borrowers. 2022: (EUR.2m-EUR 8.6m) (decrease)

A 10% increase (reduction) in the basis of measurement for equity investments with all other inputs remaining constant
would result in an increase (reduction) of BB2F857 (31 Decembef022: EURS3,176K).

An increase (reduction) of net assets would feisuan increase (reduction) of E8B9k (31 DecembeR022: EURB99K) in
the fair value of longerm loans.
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The following table shows the reconciliation from opening to closing level 3 fair values.

Reconciliation of level 3 fair values 30.06.2023

EUR k Equity investments Convertible loans

As at 01.01.2023 664,377 10,020

Profit/loss, including in the other comprehensive income (IFRS ¢

changes of the fair value -8,938 0
Profit/loss, including in the net profit for the period

changes of the fair value 0 0

Interest cover 0 0
Additions in the financial year 4,010 850
Disposals in the financial year -153 41
Foreign exchange differences 659 0
As at30.06.2023 659,955 10,829

Net gains/losses by category

EUR k 30.06.2023 31.12.2022
Financial assets and liabilities, which are mandatory measured at FVTPL 1,471 -5,009
Financial assets, which are measured at amortised cost 2,853 2,355
Financial liabilities, which are measured at amortised cost -3,774 -5,892
Equity investments, which are measured at FVTOCI (without recycling)* -6,889 10,528

* Amount after tax

Dividend income from equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income amounted to
EUR26,534 in the financial year (H2022: EUR27,436k). The dividends received result exclusively from participations still
held at the end of the reporting period. The fair value of equity investments disposed of as at the date of disposal is
EURL53k (31 Decembef022: EUR5,661K).

No gains were realised in the statement of comprehensive income in connection wifinahelisposal of equity
investments.
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3.1.4 Non-current borrowings and other loans

As at 30 June 2023, narurrent borrowings and other loans amotatEUR 51,977k (31 December 2022: EUR 28,184Kk).

The increase is mainly due to the addition in other loans regarding business expansion of PATRIZIA Infrastructure Debt
Partners Il SCP of EUR 24,637k in the second quarter of 2023.

The book value of nezurrent borrowings and other loans classified at amortised cost is EUR 41,149k as at 30 June 2023
(31 December 2022: EUR 18,174k) and the corresponding fair value is EUR 40,781k as at 30 June 2023 (31 December
2022: EUR 17,447k). Lovigrm loans measured at FRT amount to EUR 10,829k as at 30 June 2023 (31 December 2022:
EUR 10,020k).

3.1.5 Securities

Securities of EUR 20,841k (31 December 2022: 29,602) reported under current assets relate to the temporary acquisition of
shares in the PATRIZIA Low Carbon Core tnidsre fund. During the financial year 2023, pro rata disposal of EUR 9,803k
and offsetting valuation effects were recognised.

3.1.6 Current receivables and other current assets
Current receivables and other current assets are composed as follows:

Current receivables and other current assets

EUR k 30.06.2023 31.12.2022
Trade receivables 123,920 136,581
Receivables from services 70,755 102,629
Receivables from property sales 29 38
Other 53,136 33,914
Other current assets 78,721 94,650
Term deposits 50,492 72,380
Receivables from other investees and investors 2,465 4,024
Other 25,764 18,246
Closing Balance 202,641 231,231

Other trade receivables essentially include accrued purchase and performance fees that were earned at the end of the year
and will becomeashin later periods.

Due to the term of the time deposits of EBR492k (31 Decembe022: EUR72,380K) of more tlan 3 months, these are
reported in the balance sheahdercurrent receivables and other current assets instead of bank balances and cash in hand.

The item "Other" essentially includes loan receivables, deposits, creditors with debit balances and audefisrrals.

Receivables and other current assets have a remaining term of less than one year. The carrying amount of the receivables
and other current assets corresponds to their fair value.
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3.1.7 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and gbort bank deposits held by the Group. The carrying amount of these
assetscorresponds tdheir fair value.

Cash funds were invested in shtetm, money market securities in the context of active liquitignagement. These are
shown separately in thbalance sheetAn amount of EUR0,492% (31 Decembe022: EUR72,380K) was invested in
shortterm term deposits with a maturity of more th8mmonths. These term deposits are reported in the consolidated
balance sheet under current receivables and other current assets.

Besides liquidity in consolidated companies PATRIZIA cannot freely aestsand cash equivaleniust be permanently
retained for asset management companies and clas®et funds in ordera comply with the relevant regulatory
requirements.

Available Liquidity

EUR k 30.06.2023 31.12.2022
Cash and cash equivalents 306,332 349,518
Term deposits 50,492 72,380
Liquidity 356,824 421,898
Regulatory reserve for asssianagement companies -45,196 -41,265
Liquidity, PATRIZIA cannot freely access -6,417 -5,518
Available liquidity 305,210 375,115
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3.1.8 Financial liabilities
The maturity profile of financial liabilities is as follows:

Maturity of undiscounted financial liabilities including interest payments 30.06.2023

Carrying

EUR k amoun Total amoun 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
Bank loans 91,709 103,584 103,584 0 0 0 0
Mortage loans 28,845 28,951 28,951 0 0 0 0
Bonded loans 158,000 165,394 0 91,914 1,490 1,490 70,499
Other financial liabilities 134,733 137,110 5,383 19,680 100,796 0 11,250
Derivative financial instruments 267 267 267 0 0 0 0
Total financial liablilities

undiscounted 413,555 435,306 138,186 111,595 102,287 1,490 81,749

Maturity of undiscounted financial liabilities including interest payments 31.12.2022

Carrying
EUR k amoun' Total amoun 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
Bank loans 91,688 103,584 103,584 0 0 0 0
Bonded loans 158,000 168,308 2,914 91,914 1,490 1,490 70,499
Other financial liabilities 140,494 142,870 11,076 19,747 100,796 0 11,250
Total financial liabilities
undiscounted 390,182 414,762 117,574 111,661 102,286 1,490 81,749

In the 2017 fiscal year, PATRIZIA issudmbiadedloan on the capital market for a total of EUR 300,000k. Gdreledloan
had terms of 5, 7 and 10 years and fixed and variable interest rEitesoutstanding loan amount totals EUR 158,000k, with
fixed inteest rate payments only.

The shorterm bank loans of EURL, 709k relate to temporary interim financinghe mortgage loan of EUR 28,845k is due
to the loan of the property in the development phase of German Residential Fund IV.

Other financialiabilities mainly result due to eaout liabilities regarding the transaction of Whitehelm Capital.

For the inancial liabilities with aarrying amounof EUR 413,555 aat 30 June 2023 (31 December 2022: EUR 390,182k)
the fair valugs EUR 397,940k31 December 2022: EUR 369,594k).
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3.1.9 Financial result
Financial result

EUR k Q2 2023 Q2 2022 H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Interest on bank deposits and loans 2,695 116 4,476 363 >1,000.09
Interest from participations 134 94 242 172 40.6%
Interest from taxes 163 0 307 2 >1,000.09
Other interest 191 30 376 115 228.3Y
Financial income 3,183 241 5,401 652 727.9%
Interest on overdraft facilities and loans -749 -1,139 -1,484 -2,446 -39.3%
Interest expenses from taxes -296 -521 -554 -525 5.6%
Interest expenses from participations -109 -107 -218 214 1.6%
Interest expensesLeasing IFRS 16 -60 -74 -120 -153 -21.1Y%
Other financial expenses -1,388 -456 -2,073 -640 224.0y
Financial expenses -2,601 -2,297 -4,449 -3,977 11.9%
Other financial result -878 0 =722 0 0.0%
Result from currency translation -3,405 -141 -3,428 -274 >1,000.0%
Financial result -3,701 -2,198 -3,198 -3,599 -11.1%

Financial income of EUR401k (H12022: EUR652K) increased in interest obank deposits and loans mainly due to the
current positive interest rates on cash and term deposits.

Other interests mainly result due to receivables from employees.

The financial expenses of EUR4% (H1 202: EUR3,977K) are attributable to financialiabilities measured at amortised
cost and recognised at effective interest.

The interest on overdrafts and loans mainly contains interebboded loans.

The other financial expenses mainly relate to interest from the compounding of pension oisligatio from the
compounding of earaut liabilities.

The other financial result mainly includes expenses regarding the revaluation of financial assets.

In the first haHyearof 2023, the currency result was EUR428k (H12022: EUR-274K). This includes realised exchange
rate effects of EURL,819k (H1 2022: 1,564k) as well as noash exchange rate effects of EIR609k (H1 2022:1,838K).
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3.2Goodwill
Goodwill

30.06.2023 31.12.2022

Carrying

EUR k Cost Amortisation amounts Cosl Amortisatior Carrying amount
As at 01.01. 386,647 -5,394 381,253 216,444 0 216,444
Additions 0 0 0 0 5,394 5,394
Changes itthe
consolidated group 316 0 316 172,164 0 172,164
Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0
Foreign exchange
differences -5,356 0 5,356 -1,961 0 -1,961
Closing Balance 381,607 -5,394 376,213 386,647 -5,394 381,253

The change in total goodwill compared tol3dcember 202 is mainlydue tothe exchange rate changes of ELE356k (31
December2022: EUR-1,961K. These are mainly due to the exchange rate development of the British podnithe
Australian dollar.

Changes in the consolidated group resulting doethe finalisation of the corresponding purchase price allocation of
ADVANTAGE Investment Partners within the measurement period in accordance with IFRS 3.

These values are tested for impairment at least once a year by the Group as part of an impegtierstccordance with
IAS 36. As at 30 June 2B2there were no events that would justfiyrther impairment test and the resulting need for
impairment.

3.3 0Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets

30.06.2023 31.12.2022
Carrying

EUR k Cost Amortisation amounts Cosl Amortisatior Carrying amouni
As at 01.01. 254,530 -147,396 107,134 227,492 -135,750 91,742
Additions 0 -6,383 -6,383 0 -15,327 -15,327
Changes in the
consolidated group -408 0 -408 32,168 0 32,168
Disposals -278 278 0 -489 489 0
Foreign exchange
differences 1,313 -1,562 -249 4,641 3,192 -1,449
Closing Balance 255,157 -155,064 100,094 254,530 -147,396 107,134

As at 30 June 2023, other intangible assets decreased mainly due ngwng depreciation of the fund management
contracts.

In the first half of 2023, writedowns were made on fund management contracts totaling €889k (H1 2022 EUR
6,332K), on licenses of EUR 17k (H1 2022: EURa®k) onother rights and asset®taling EUR7k (H1 2022 EURA06K).

Changes in the consolidated group resulting due to the finalisation of the corresponding purchase price allocation of
ADVANTAGE InvestmenttRars within the measurement period in accordance with IFRS 3.

Thenegativecurrency effects of EUR49k (31 December 2022EUR1,449K) mainly result from the currency translation of
the fund management contracts of PATRIZIA PROPERTY INVESTMENT MARAGER®e reporting date.
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3.4 Participations in companies accounted for using the equity method

Participations in companies accounted for using the equity method

30.06.2023 31.12.2022
At equity Carrying At equity

EUR k Cost adjustment amounts Cost adjustmen Carrying amoun
As at 01.01. 10,641 -4,096 6,545 26,819 -3,072 23,747
Additions 861 115 977 1,575 -1,620 -46
Changes in the
consolidated group 0 0 0 89 0 89
Disposals -3,724 0 -3,724 9,607 -7,614 -17,221
Foreign exchange
differences -11 0 -11 -25 0 -25
Closing Balance 7,767 -3,980 3,786 18,851 -12,306 6,545

The decrease inparticipations ircompanies accountefbr using the equity method resultedainly due to the profitable sale

of PATRIZIA"s 10% share in the tech company control.IT Unternehmensberatung GmbH (Carrying amount as at 31 December
2022: EUR 2,824k). As at 30 June 2023, there was an impairment occurring with the participation Cognotekt GmbH (no
value in use).

Theearningsfrom companiesaccounted for using the equity method is made up as follows:

Earnings from companies accounted for using the equity method

EUR k Q2 2023 Q2 202z H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
PATRIZIA WohnModul | SIGAY -384 -25 -322 -25 >1,000.09
Evana AG -647 -286 -647 -286 125.8%
Cognotekt GmbH -28 90 -28 90 -69.1%
Others 47 212 47 212 -78.0%
Total -1,012 -189 950 -189 402.1%

3.5Inventories

Inventories include assets held for sale in the normal course of business.

Inventories

EUR k 30.06.2023 31.12 2022

Properties intended for sale 88,104 88,104

Properties in the development phase 103,843 71,678

Total 191,946 159,781

The change in inventories of EBR165% i n Oproperti es i n rdsuite prirdaelydeel tam PATRIZIA phase

German Residential Fund IV.
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3.6 Equity

We refer tahe statement of changes in equity for information on changes in equity.

The share capital of the company amounts, after offsetting treasury shares in the amount&5&kFRor 6,548,668 no
parvalue share¢31 December2022: EURG,176K), to EURB5,803k (31 December 202 EURB6,175k) as at the end of the
reporting period an@as divided int@®5,720,791no-parvalue registered shares.

The capital reserveseduced by 4,526Krom EUR67,181k to EUR62,65% as at 30 Jun®023. The capital reserve is
reduceddue to the share buyback programniée disposal and transfer of shares in connection with the Whitehelm Capital
M&A transaction had a partially offsetting effect here.

In the reporting period the total number of treasury shares increts@¢b48,668and their total valueip to EURL02,299Kk.

Treasury shares

Number of share Price per share in EU Total Value in EL
As at 01.01.2023 6,176,119 97,412,120
Share buyback programme 655,379 11.34 7,432,00C
Disposal andransfer of shares 282,830 9.00 2,545,47C
As at 30.06.20232 6,548,668 102,298,649

1 Average price per share in EUR from several share purchases/ kalesrgnsaction costs
2 The total value of treasury shares is calculated by adding spaatt buyback programmes up to the current reporting date, less all sales of treasury shares in the context of purchase
price payments of M&A transactions

There were nogontrolling interests of EU#B,427k as at 30 Jun2023 (31 Decembe022: EUR66,346K).
A profit share of EUR29% (H12022: EURL,63%) was allocated to neoontrolling interests in the reporting period.

As at 30 Jun@023, profit shares of EUR74k (H12022: EUR441K) had been withdrawn by naontrolling interests.
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3.7 Non-current liabilities

Nontcurrent liabilities of EUR34,03% (31 DecembeR022: EUR134,628K essentially consisbf the earrout liability in
connectio with the Whitehelm Capital M&A transaction of EUR 110,285k. Other positiotie domgterm component of
the management participation model, the TRIUVA guaranteed dividend-tomaolling interests anather noncurrent
financialliabilities

3.8Tax

The hcome taXiabilitiesessentially comprise EUR, 706k (31 Decembe022: EUR18,407K of corporation and trade tax
on the profits of German and n@erman subsidiaries.

Deferred income tax relating to compnents of other comprehensive income

H1 2023 H1 2022
EUR k Before tax Tax Net Before tax Tax Net

Profit/loss arising on the translation of the

financial statements of foreign operations 2,297 0 -2,297 -2,340 0 -2,340
Valueadjustments resulting from equity

instruments measured including capital gains

(IFRS 9) -8,938 831 -8,107 19,026 -2,541 16,485
Value adjustments resulting from

remeasurements of defined benefit plans (IA¢

19) 2 0 2 -270 0 -270
Total -11,234 831 -10,403 16,416 -2,541 13,874
Income taxes

EUR k Q2 2023 Q2 2022 H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Current income taxes -6,410 -8,843 -10,644 -12,958 -17.9%
Deferred taxes 9,327 2,232 5,437 1,607 238.3¥
Income tax 2,917 -6,610 -5,206 -11,351 -54.1%

The tax rate (income taxes in relation to EBT) wa6%7n the reporting period (H1 20243.0%). The reason for the
increase mainly results from additional tax expenses for previous geavsll as valuation effects on deferred taxes.
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3.9Revenues

Revenues by Country

EUR k Germany Luxembourc  United Kingdon Rest of worlc Total
Revenues from management servic 41,317 9,300 9,393 5,789 65,799
Management fees 33,710 9,412 7,307 5,649 56,078
Performance fees 6,790 -112 0 9 6,687
Transaction fees 817 0 2,086 131 3,033
Proceeds from the sale of principal
investments 0 0 0 0 0
Rental revenues 95 945 0 0 1,040
Revenues from ancillary costs 13 0 0 0 13
Other 33 424 150 477 1,083
Revenues 41,457 10,669 9,543 6,266 67,935
Revenues from management servic 51,595 7,799 11,087 6,003 76,484
Management fees 35,153 6,785 11,513 5,952 59,403
Performance fees 7,922 0 -32 2 7,892
Transaction fees 8,519 1,014 -394 49 9,188
Proceeds from the sale of principal
investments 279 -128 0 0 151
Rental revenues 983 183 0 340 1,506
Revenues from ancillary costs 12 78 0 0 90
Other -1,217 246 166 119 -686
Revenues 51,651 8,179 11,253 6,462 77,545
Revenues from management servic 76,998 20,744 17,947 11,597 127,287
Management fees 68,497 20,338 15,862 11,314 116,011
Performance fees 6,801 362 0 9 7,172
Transaction fees 1,701 45 2,084 274 4,103
Proceeds from theale of principal
investments 0 0 0 0 0
Rental revenues 193 1,697 0 -0 1,890
Revenues from ancillary costs 30 13 0 0 43
Other 65 544 371 598 1,578
Revenues 77,286 22,998 18,318 12,195 130,797
Revenues from management servic 91,563 13,501 21,084 10,379 136,527
Management fees 65,850 13,947 21,590 10,328 111,714
Performance fees 14,845 -1,418 -32 2 13,397
Transaction fees 10,868 972 473 49 11,416
Proceeds from the sale of principal
investments 272 17,806 0 0 18,079
Rental revenues 2,765 382 0 693 3,840
Revenues from ancillary costs 24 89 0 0 113
Other -1,205 406 264 454 -81
Revenues 93,419 32,184 21,349 11,525 158,476

The gographical allocation is based on the registered office of the unit performing the services.

Revenue is measured on the basis of the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Group recognize revenue
when it transfers control of good or service to a customer.

The distribution of revenue from contracts with customers with regard of timing of revenue recognition is as follows:
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Revenues from contracts with clients

EUR k Q22023 Q2 2022 H1 2023 H1 2022
Transferred products/services at a period of time 9,720 17,232 11,276 42,891
Transferred products/services over a period of time 57,175 58,807 117,631 111,745
Revenues from client contracts 66,895 76,039 128,907 154,637

3.10 Other operating income

Other operating income essentially relates to:

Other operating income

EUR k Q2 2023 Q2 2022 H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Income from discontinued obligations 893 4,375 1,730 4,475 -61.3%
Income from payments in kind 262 253 505 482 4.8%
Insurance compensation 0 7 0 7 -95.6%

I ncome from rei mbu
fees, court costs and transaction costs a

compensation 3 12 3 90 -96.8Y%
Income from sales of financial assets 7 0 7 0 >1,000.09
Other 168 321 1,855 574 223.4Y
Total 1,333 4,969 4,101 5,627 -27.1%

Income from discontinued obligations essentially results from the final settlement of bonuses and variable salaries as well a
liabilities for goods andervices ordered but unclaimed.

I n t he item 0Ot heée profitable esalee of PATRIZiMEs] shdrey in the tech company control.IT
Unternehmensberatung GmbH, which was accounted for using the equity naftB@R 1050k in the first quarter 2023
3.11 Costs for purchased services

The 0Cost of pur chas e ®dB54k(ldl2022: EWRE,356K) essentiallyocongplisesrthg pukchbBe of
fund management services fexternallabel funds in the amount of EBB5% (H12022: EUR7,434Kk),for which PATRIZIA
Immobilien Kapitalverwaltungsgesellschaft mbH is the service asset management company.

In order to ensure an improved presentation of the earnings situation, this item also includes transaction costs that are
incurred in ordeto generate revenue and are generally passed on.

3.12 Staff costs

Staff costs

EUR k Q2 2023 Q2 2022 H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Wages and salaries 39,869 37,377 75,284 70,385 7.0%

of which valuation of phantom share 178 -1,069 150 -1,805 -108.3%
Social security contributions 5,561 6,085 10,505 12,114 -13.3%
Total 45,430 43,462 85,789 82,499 4.0%

Thenumber of employeeslightly decreasedrom 1,009 (30 June 202) to 993 fulltime equivalents (30 June 28R The
increase in staff costs is mainue to general inflatiorelated salary adjustmentand longterm incentive provisions
Furthermore, there were consolidation effects due to the acquisition of Whitehelm Gaftitdl donsolidation as from 1
February 2022; only included féive months in the prioyear period) and of ADVANTAGE Investment Partners (initial
consolidation as from 1 December 2022; not included in the-ggar period).

Correlating to thencreasein the price of PATRIZIA sharegpensesof EURL50k (H12022: incomeEUR-1,805k) arose in
connection with the remeasurement of the value of phantom shares in the reporting period.
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3.13 Other operating expenses

At a level ofEUR38,433k other operating xpenses in H1 @23 were-8.2%lowerthan in the same period of the previous
year.Below is a detailed breakdown:

Other operating expenses

EUR k Q2 2023 Q2 2022 H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Tax, legal, other advisory and financial

statement fees 5,598 5,382 9,301 11,101 -16.2%
IT and communication costs and cost of

office supplies 4,204 4,541 8,721 9,137 -4.5%
Rent, ancillary costs and cleaning costs 676 969 1,945 1,835 6.0%
Other taxes 141 2,468 400 2,564 -84.4%
Vehicle andravel expenses 2,143 2,107 3,959 3,116 27.1%
Advertising costs 733 1,261 1,782 1,966 -9.4%
Recruitment and training costs and cost

temporary workers 2,648 1,317 3,748 2,819 33.0%
Contributions, fees and insurance costs 1,633 1,369 2,759 2,501 10.3%
Commission and other sales costs 434 614 560 951 -41.1Y%
Costs of management services 644 559 1,284 1,137 13.0%
Indemnity/reimbursement 50 315 59 315 -81.4Y%
Donations 790 1,183 797 1,190 -33.0%
Other 1,871 1,900 3,118 3,236 -3.7%
Total 21,564 23,987 38,433 41,867 -8.2%

Tax, legal, other advisory and financial statement fees in the amount &,80R (H12022: EURL1,101Kk) include, among
others:

- Costs related to personnetlated legal advice in the amount of EYB0®2k (H1 2022: EURS86Kk)

- Audit fees of EUR85k (H1 2022:586k)

- Tax consulting fees of EBR6k (H1 2022: EUR73K)

- Projectrelated consulting services in the context of digitalisation as well as costs of initial testing, acquisition and use
of new technologizin the amount of EUES2k (H1 2022: EUR92K).

- Costs related to the acquisition and integration of Whitehelm Capital o@EHHR 2022: EUR,665K)

The decrease in other taxes is attributable to a-ofigtem in the previous period relating to VAT pemts for previous
years in the Netherlands.

Vehicle and travel expenses as well as advertising were again on an increasing level after the declining travel and contact
restrictions in connection with the Covl® pandemic.

Recruitment, training antétmporary employment costs increased mainly due to higher recruitment costs related to global
growth and the reorgasation of management structures and the leadership team.

The item contributions, fees and insurance costs break down into contributioBEIRf1096k (H1 2022: EURL,224),
insurance in the amount of EURIG5k (H1 2022: EUR90K) and bank fees of EUR2k (H1 2022: EURS8S8K).

The donations include donations to charitable organisations such as the PATRIZIA Foundation. In 26220thep 0 s

management had decided to support charitable organisations annually with up to 1% of the Company’s EBITDA (since 2018
until 2021 with up to 1% of operating income).
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3.14 Reorganisation income/expenses

Compared to the same period last yeaeorganiséion expensestotalled EUR311k (H1 2022: EUR2,307K). The

reorganisation expenses recognised in the previous period mainly result from continued strategic investments to further
diversify and globalise the company. These were mainly expenses for seyeagnants and current salaries during the

rel ease phase. Reorgani sation expenses recognised in the ¢
implemented in November 2022. Provisions from the reorganisation that are no longer recpireléased to the income

statement. In the first hajfear 2023,reorganization incomamounted to EUR4k (H1 2022: EURK) due to reversals of

provisions recognised in the income statement.

3.15 Appreciation, amortisation and depreciation

Appreciation, amaisation and depreciation break down as follows:

Appreciation, amortisation and
depreciation

EUR k Q2 2023 Q2 2022 H1 2023 H1 2022 Change
Amortisation of fund management

contracts and licences 3,166 2,688 6,356 6,332 0.4%
Amortisation of rights of use 2,529 2,540 4,957 5,042 -1.7%
Depreciation of software and fixed asset 1,233 5,698 2,465 7,189 -65.7%
Depreciation of goodwill 0 5,641 0 5,641 >1,000.09
Value adjustments of loans granted to

subsidiaries/affiliated companies 0 -0 0 17 >1,000.09
Amortisation of other rights and assets 288 375 563 406 >1,000.09
Value adjustment in associated

participations 250 0 250 0 0.0%
Appreciation in associated participations -365 -90 -365 -90 305.7Y
Total 7,101 16,853 14,226 24,537 -42.0%

The decrease in appreciation/amortisation and depreciation mainly results from the impairment of intangible assets
regarding the BrickVest investmentthe previous periadrhese impairment lossés the first halyear 2022consisted of
the impairment of goodit of EUR HB41kand the amorgation of software of EURGB8k

3.16 Earnings per share

Earnings per share

H1 2023 H1 2022
EUR k adjusted* adjusted’ H1 2023 H1 2022
Share of earnings attributable to shareholders of the Grou 6,321 15,715 6,064 13,408
Number of shares? 85,720,791 88,239,57€ 85,720,791 88,239,57€
Weighted number of shares undiluted? 85,695,24C 88,724,941 85,695,24C 88,724,941
Earnings per share (undiluted) in EUR 0.07 0.18 0.07 0.15
Weighted number of shareguted? 85,695,24C 88,724,941 85,695,24C 88,724,941
Earnings per share (diluted) in EUR3 0.07 0.18 0.07 0.15

1 Adjusted = without reorgasation effort
2 Pending after share buybddkansfer of shares
3 Sharebased paymentf served by newhares
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4 Segment reporting

Segment reporting categorises the segments according to whether PATRIZIA acts as a service provider or an investor. In line
with the Groupds reporting for management OPpepatsesgaBdgman:
two segments have been identified based on functional criteria: Investments and Management Services.

The Investments segment bundles principal investments and participations.

The Management Services segment covers a broad rangeabfassetsservices such as the acquisition and sale of

residential and commercial properties or portfolios (Acquisition und Disposals)ovielhted property management (asset
management), strategic consulting on investment strategy, portfolio plaantéhgllocation (portfolio management) and the

execution of complex, nestandard investments (alternative investmen®).r ough t he Groupds own ass
companiesspecial funds are also set up and managed according to individual client requestserice fee income

generated from both cmvestments and thirgarty business is reported in the Management Services segment. This also

includes income from participations that takes the form of services rendered as a shareholder contribution feetthe as
management of the emvestment Dawonia GmbH.

Internal controlling and reportingithin PATRIZIA Group is based on IFRS principles. The Group measures the success of its
segments using segment earnings indicators, which are referred to for the purpimgernal controlling and reporting as
EBTDA

Segment EB DAis the net total of revenues, changes in inventories, the result from the deconsolidation of subsidiaries, the
cost of materials and staff costs, the cost of purchased services, other ageiatome and expenses, changes in the value

of investment property, reorganisation income and expers®&bnet income from participations (including companies
accounted for using the equity method)

Revenus aregenerated between reportable segmentsedéintragroup transactions are settled at market prices.

All relevant consolidation matters to be eliminated, such as intercompany sales, intercompany results and the reversal of
intercompany eliminations, take place within the segments.

As in the prewus year, nosturrent assets are mainly held in Germany.

Noncurrent assets do not include financial investments (with the exception of financial assets accounted for using the equity
method), deferred tax assets and employee benefit assets.

Segment infamation is calculated in line with the accounting policies applied when preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

The individual operating segments are set out below. The reporting of amounts in thousamds(BUR k) may result in
rounding diférences based on the unrounded figures.
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Segment Reporting 2023 (01.01-30.06.2023)

Managemer

EUR k Investment: Service! Groug
Revenues 74 130,724 130,797
Changes in inventories 0 0 0
Other operating income 1,121 2,980 4,101
Incomefrom the deconsolidation of subsidiaries 1,055 22 1,077
Total operating performance 2,249 133,725 135,975
Cost of materials -29 -89 -118
Cost of purchased services 0 -8,541 -8,541
Staff costs -4 -85,785 -85,789
Other operating expenses -2,101 -36,333 -38,433
Impairment result for trade receivables and contract assets -49 4 -53
Result from participations 1,705 24,829 26,534
Earnings from companies accounted for using the equity method -612 -337 -950
Cost from thedeconsolidation of subsidiaries 0 -3 -3
EBITDAR 1,160 27,462 28,622
Reorganisation Income 0 54 54
Reorganisation expenses 0 -311 -311
EBITDA 1,160 27,205 28,365
Appreciation/amortisation of other intangible assets?, software and rights ofdeggeciation

of property, plant and equipment as well as financial investments 115 -14,341 -14,226
Earnings before interests and taxes (EBIT) 1,275 12,864 14,139
Finance income 130 5,271 5,401
Finance costs -625 -3,824 -4,449
Other financiatesult 0 -722 -722
Result from currency translation -16 -3,413 -3,428
Earnings before taxes (EBT) 765 10,176 10,941
Income tax -443 -4,763 -5,206
Net profit for the period 322 5,413 5,735

* In particular fund management contrattansferred as part of the recent acquisitions
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Segment Reporting 2022 (01.01-30.06.2022)

Managemer

EUR k Investment: Service! Group
Revenues 21,552 136,924 158,476
Changes in inventories -15,950 0 -15,950
Other operating income 95 5,532 5,627
Income from the deconsolidation of subsidiaries 18,087 0 18,087
Total operating performance 23,784 142,456 166,241
Cost of materials -493 -1 -494
Cost of purchased services 0 -9,356 9,356
Staff costs 4 -82,495 -82,499
Otheroperating expenses -1,703 -40,164 41,867
Impairment result for trade receivables and contract assets -12 61 -73
Result from participations 1,689 25,511 27,200
Earnings from companies accounted for using the equity method -405 216 -189
Cost fromthe deconsolidation of subsidiaries -2,122 0 -2,122
EBITDAR 20,733 36,107 56,840
Reorganisation expenses 0 -2,307 -2,307
EBITDA 20,733 33,800 54,534
Appreciation/amortisation of other intangible assets?, software and rights ofdeggeciation

of property, plant and equipment as well as financial investments 90 -24,627 -24,537
Earnings before interests and taxes (EBIT) 20,823 9,173 29,996
Finance income 0 652 652
Finance costs -1,149 -2,828 -3,977
Result from currenciranslation 31 -305 -274
Earnings before taxes (EBT) 19,706 6,692 26,398
Income tax -1,055 -10,296 -11,351
Net profit for the period 18,651 -3,604 15,047

* In particular fund management contracts transferred as part of the recepiisitions
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5 Information on the consolidated cash flow statement
The consolidated cash flow statement was prepared in accordance with the provisions of IAS 7.
In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash flows are presented according to thiovadtom operating activities, cash

flow from investing activities and cash flow from financing activities. In principle, the derivation of these cashflowgs remai
valid as shown in the 2@2GroupAnnual Report.

The amounts shown in the consolidated célslv statement correspond only partially to the changes in the statement of
financial positions observable from one reporting period to the next, as they do not take into accecasmd@ems such as
changes in exchange rates or changes in the scogemgolidation.

6 Other explanations
6.1Related party transactions

The presentation on related party transactions ur2rof the notes to the consolidated financial statements in PATRIZIA's
2022 GroupAnnual Report remains valid.

In addition,the legal representativeare not aware of any circumstancesontracts or legal transactions with affiliated or
related parties for which the company does not receive fair and appropriate consideration. All business relationships are in
line with standardmarket conditions and do not fundamentally differ from the trade relationships with other persons or
companies.

6.2 Contingent liabilities and contractual payment obligations

As at the balance sheet date, PATRIZIA has contingent liabilities from obligatinake additional financial contributions

to participations amounting to EUR 71,593k Decembe022: EUR 9,584Kk) in relation to participations and participations

in companies accounted for using the equity method. These are capital calls that theemana@f the respective
companies can make as needed without further consent of PATRIZIA. There are also contractual payment obligations from
pending transactions in the amount of EUR 57,4@0kecembef022: EUR 76,874Kk).

6.3 Events after the end of theeporting period

There were no events after the balance sheet date with an impact on the asset, financial and earnings situation.
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7 Responsibility Statement by the legal representatives

To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applicaplatireg principles, the interim consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
Group, and the combined interim management report for the Company and the Group incliailesesiew of the
development and performance of the business and the position of the Group, together with a description of
the principal opportunities and risks associated with the expected development of the Group for the remaining months of the
financel year.

Augsburg10 August 203

The Executive Directors

, ) | ) )& /
A Cqu V% Qﬂ

Dr Asoka Wohrmann Christoph Glaser Slava Shafir
CEO CFO COO

/f

Wolfgang Egger
Founder
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The PATRIZIA share

PATRIZIA shareholder structure as at 30 June 2023 | by shareholder group | Specification in %

= First Capital Partner GmbH *

= Union Investment Privatfonds GmbH 2

24.0
= Allianz SE 3
y PATRI ZI A o
72 Ot her institutional

" “"Private sharehol

der s

* First Capital Partner GmbH is attributabléFtundeWolfgang Egger
2 According to the voting rights notification 1 February2023

3 According to the voting rights notification of 14 December 2020

* Treasury shares

° Source: PATRIZIA share register

PATRIZIA share performance as at 30 June 2023

ondnna €
Hp®nna €
HNndnA €
Mpdnna €
Mn®nn

p®n

nonn €
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
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Analyst recommendations as at 30 June 2023

6
Atarget price
EUR 13.19
1 1 resulting upside:
Buy Hold Sell

*Basedon closing price of EUFD.90

The number of treasury shares as at 30 June3208ount t06,548,668with a total value of EURD2,29% based on averagshare

prices.

Treasury shares

Number of share Price pershare in EUF Total Value in EL
As at 01.01.2023 6,176,119 97,412,120
Share buyback programme 655,379 11.34 7,432,00C
Disposal and transfer of shares 282,830 9.00 2,545,47C
As at 30.06.20232 6,548,668 102,298,649

 Average price peshare in EUR from several share purchases/ sdtes. (ransaction costp
2 The total value of treasury shares is calculated by adding up all share buyback programmes up to the current repdessgadiagales of treasury shares in the context atpase
price payments of M&A transactions
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Financial calendar and
contact details

Financial calendar 203

Date

11 August 203
14 November 203

Financial calendar 202

2023 HaltyearFinancial Report with investor and analyst conference call

9M 2023 Interim Statement with investor and analyst conference call

Date

29 February 2024
22 March 2024

15 May 2024

12 June 2024

14 August 2024

14 November 2024

Investor Relations& Group Reporting

Martin Praum
T +49 69 6435058.114

investor.relations@patrizia.ag

2023 Preliminary results with investor and analyst conference call
2023 Annual Report

3M 2024 Interim Statement with investor and analyst conference call
2024 Annual General Meeting

H1 2024 Financial Report with investor and analyst conference call
9M 2024 Interim Statement with investor aadalyst conference call

Corporate Communications
Christoph Liedtke

T +49 821 50916636
communications@patrizia.ag

ThisH1 2023 financial report was published dr® August 203. This is a translation of the Germ&fi 2023 Financial
Report. In case of doubt, the German version shall apply. Both versions are available on our website:

https://www.patrizia.ag/de/aktionaere/news-publikationen/zwischenmitteilungemnd-halbjahresfinanzberichte/
https://www.patrizia.ag/en/shareholders/newspublications/interimstatementsandhi-financiatreports/
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